Exhibit C.1
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
' Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
As of December 31, 2017

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 23438415

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources
and are therefore are not reported in the funds
Capital assets, net of depreciation 121,923,878

Some receivables that are not currently available are reported as
deferred inflows of rescurces in the fund financial statements
but are recognized as revenues when earned in the government-wide
statements

Special assessments 845,383
Deferred outflows of rescurces and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions are applicable to future periods, and, ther are
not reported in fund statements
Deferred outflows 7,287,434
Deferred inflows {2,340,698)
Internal Service Fund net position 1,886,196
Long-term liabilities applicable the City's gev. rnmental activities are not
due and payable in the cur penod a’n ceordingly, are not reported
as fund liabilities. Interest on.long-termi ebt is not accrued in
governmental funds, but"ra eris ret: zed as an expenditure when due
(8,845,000)
(2,022,103)
(4,284 420)
{217,622)
{54,488)
$ 137616975

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Exhibit D

Nonmajor Totai
Debt THF Governmental Governmental
General Service Districts Funds Funds
REVENUE
Taxes $ 17,083,625 1,300,000 % 2,415,641 3,005,893 § 23,815,159
intergovernmental revenue 2,264,961 - 474 166 388,852 3,128,969
Licenses and permits 773,877 - - 25,885 799,762
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 485,407 - - - 485,407
Public charges for services 1,603,247 - - 2,536,224 4,139,471
Special assessments - 106,779 - 424,950 531,729
intergovernmental charges for services 172,795 - - - 172,796
Investment earnings 189,275 11,613 41,332 396,563
Miscellaneous revenue 148,853 - - 285 899
Total revenue 22,732,041 1,418,382 2,931,128 33,765,755
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 2,940,898 - 3,001,970
Public safety 16,660,351 36,101 16,696,452
Public works 3,852,472 1,575,395 5,465,245
Health and human services 675,875 182,566 858,441
Culture, recreation and education 187,959 1,451,667 1,639,626
Conservation and development 520,314, - 560,072
Capital outlay 3,382 327 4,745 936
Debt service
Principal 1,675,000 - 3,030,000
Interest 74,152 - 218,888
Debt issuance costs W - - 40, 442 40 442
Total expenditures 1%99,736 3,240,969 6,678,498 36,257,072
Excess (deficiency} of revenue
over expenditures (61,344) (309,840) 5,695 (2,481,317)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES!
Sale of capital assets - - 179,355 179,355
Transfers in 113,997 - 57,799 1,231,588
Transfers out (57,138) - - (141,608) {198,746)
General obligation debt | - - - 1,630,000 1,630,000
Premium on debt issued - 51,071 - - 51,071
Total other finah sources and us 1,002,655 165,068 - 1,725,546 2,883,269
Net change in fund bala ces {1,103,173) 83,724 {309,840} 1,731,241 401,952
Fund batances - beginning 7,690,684 651,288 2,531,841 12,162,640 23,036,463
Fund balances - ending $ 6587511 735022 $  2,222.001 13,893,881 $ 23,438,415

See accompanying noes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit E
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Net change in fund balances - fotal governmentat funds 3 401,952

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense or losses when disposed of,

Capital outlays
Depreciation
Net book value of assets disposed

177,822
(3.435,868)
* (79,687)

Contributed capital assets are reported as revenues in the

statement of activities. 2,862,164
The issuance of long-term debt ( e.g. notes, leases} provides curre
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal on long-term debt consumes current financial
resources of government funds. Neither trans
any effect on net position.
3,030,000
{1,681,071)
require the use of current fin
not reported as expendltur
(194,285)
34,737
(120,270}
(859,879)
$ 4135615

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

REVENUE
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Public charges for services
Intergovernmental charges for services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous revenue

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Culture and recreation
Conservation and development

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Net change in fuhd
budgetary b

2017 encumibrances
2016 encumbrances

Net change in fundibalance - generally
accepted accounting principles basis

Fund Balances - beginning

Fund Balances - ending

Exhibit F

Variance with

final budget -

Budgeted Amount Excess
Original Final Actual (Deficiency)
$ 18,200458 $ 18,200,458 $ 18126468 § (73,990)
2,237.400 2,237,400 2,264,961 27,561
1,051,865 1,051,865 773,877 (277,988)
500,000 500,000 485 407 - (14,593)
1,753,250 1,764,250 1,603 .2 (161,003}
203,200 203,200 1725106, (30,404)
220,000 220,000 “189,2 (30,725)
125,650 125,650 14;5,853 23,203
24,291,823 24,302,823 23:764,884 {537,939)
3,314,937 2,994,101 64,748
16,768,325 16,706,741 303,894
196,359 3,835,608 348,151
675,875 19,922
186,968 7,535
527,514 96,163
25767 221 24,926,808 840,413
{1,464,398) (1,161,924) 302,474
- 26,950 26,950 .
{24,000) {57,138) (57,138} -
{1,492,430) {1,494,5886) (1,192,112} 302,474
- 150,565 150,565 -
- (61,626) (61,626} -
(1,492,490) (1,405,647) (1,103,173} 302,474
7,690,684 7,690,684 7,680,684 -
$ 6198194 $ 6,285037 § 6587511 §$ 302,474

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
[Due from other funds
Pue from other governments
Prepaic expenses
Advance to other funds
Total current assets

Noncusrent assets -
Restricted cash and invesiments
Due from other governments
Regulatory assets
Capital assets
Land
Buildings and improvements
Improvemenis other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets {net of
accumutated depreciation)

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED CGUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
As of December 31, 2017
{with comparative information for December 31, 2016}

Exhibit G

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental

Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities -

Utility Utility Sewer Sewer Year tnterpal

Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
$ 1,900,126 $ 1,188,005 $ 1,508,191 % 519,301 3,408,317 % 2,100,065
1,474,084 1,415,091 853,368 866,739 2,327,450 50,646
161,856 183,461 57,015 121,939 258,871 -
39,260 28,276 44650 56,171 83,910 -
- - 1,214,723 3,940,408 1,214,723 -
- 2,304 - 1,500
- - - 25,000
3,575,326 2,818,137 3,717,845 2,177,211
- - 178,590 178,590 -
- - 18,799,568 18,799,969 -
171,767 303,391 - - 171,767 -
162,885 162,885 725,594 #725,594 888,479 -
3,010,304 3,048,279 3,298,163+, ...+3,292 878 6,308,467 -
55,434,661 55,420,201 78,725,671 134,189,112 -
5,067,718 811,870 6,123,814 -
{(19,203,715) (18,484,127} {3%,796,036) -
63,241,683 65,071,386 107,713,836 -
82,220,542 85,480,805 126,864,162 -
85,038,487 80 987 577 134,157,433 2,477,211
188,850 386,276 168,109 833,543 -
Continued
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LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Accrued interest payable

Due to other funds

Current portion of iong-term advances

Current portion of iong-term obligations
Total current liabilities

Noencurrent liabilities

Net pnsion liability

Net OPEB liability

General obligation notes payable

Accrued compensated absences
Totai noncurrent liabilities

l.ong-term advances
Totai fiabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related

NET POSITION
Net invesiment in capital assets
Restricted
Sewer equipment replacement

Intergovernmental cocperation agreement

Unrestricted
Total net position

Ses accompanying notes to the financizl stal

Exhibit &

(concluded)
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position
Propriefary Funds
As of December 31, 2017
{with comparative information for December 31, 2016)
Business-iype Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activifies -
UittliEy Uthlity Sewer Sewer Year Internat
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Pricr Year Totals Service Funds
$ 711,295 % 730,533 % 800,489 § 558,086 § 1,511,784 % 315
6,558 689 28,084 27,8937 34,642 296,700
10,829 11,196 52,127 86,991 92 956 -
49,145 70,899 20,508 20,492 70,053 -
16,000 - - - 16,000 -
55,000 91,219 1,214,723 1,221,754 1,268,723 -
848,827 904,536 2,146,331 1,815,259 35458 291,015
418,383 202,705 361,331 779,714 -
19,727 - 19,727 ; 39,454 -
1,069,575 1,077,247 18,789,970 18,478,474 19,859,545 -
75,021 74,066 75,021 067 150,042 -
1,672,708 1,354,018 19,256,049 2,084 20,828,755 -
139,700 - 198,616 139,700 -
2,661,233 21 ,465,380 24 346 859 23,963,613 291,015
32 555 51,939 70,250 -
43,227,290 43,871,658 86,584,568 -
- 178,560 394,227 178,590 -
’ - 20,014,692 21,200,228 20,014,692 -
2,710,007 2 2,169,943 1,468,256 1,290,775 4,179,263 1,886,196
, '$ 46,403,957 $ 64,889,828 % 66,756,888 $110,857,113 § 1,886,196

$ 46,067 285
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

{with comparative information for December 31, 2016)

OPERATING REVENLIE

Metered sales

Residential

Multi-Family

Commercial

industriat

Public authority

Total metered sales
Group health & denta! charges
Unmetered sales
Public fire protection service
Private fire protection service
Forfeited discounts, penalties and other
Total operating revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services
Depreclation
Amortization
Administration

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings {loss)
Sundry
Interest expense
Total non-operating revenue {expenses)
Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers

Capital contributions
Transters out
Change in net position

Net pesition - beginning

Restaterment
Met pesition - beginning (restated

Net position - ending

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Exhibit H

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities -
Utility Utllity Sewer Sewer Year Internal
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
3008260 § 3040247 § 1801699 § 1785296 § 48090855 -
741,404 717,806 447 852 457,801 § 1,189,353 -
848,981 819,012 492,742 487,248 1,344,723 -
475,367 467,973 386,229 408,631 871,596 -
258,312 270,342 143,731 151,190 402,043 -
5,332,321 5,315,380 3,282,353 3,292,166 8,614,674 -
- - - - - 3,035,082
7,355 27,284 - - 7,355 -
541,486 534,028 - 479488 -
122,350 122,290 - a5 -
53,573 55,591 31,501 -
6,057,085 5,054,573 3,313,854 3,035,082
3,444,137 3,609,058 2,279,953 5,724,090 3,924 549
1,194,028 1,214,163 2,119,900 3,313,929 -
130,566 130,666 - 130,668 -
624,581 560,354 822,289 3 1,446,870 -
5,393,413 5,514,241 5,222 14 5,167,869 10,615,555 3,824,549
663,672 (1,869,319) {1,244 616} (889,467)
0,926 435,320 528,004 28,588
2,515 85,943 -
{531,445 {539,021} =
38,362 {83,610) 75,926 28,588
{1,868,826) (1,962,82%) (1,168,690) (859,879)
862,223 28,780 124,962 43 241 -
047,053) (3,194) (3,329) {1,032 843) -
479,141 (1,844,340) (1,841,296) (2,158,292) (859,879)
45,524,816 E6,756,888 48,146,724 113,160,845 2,746 075
- (22,720) 22,451,460 {45,440) -
45,824,816 66,734,168 58,598,184 113,115,405 2,746,075
46,067,285 § 46,403,957 $ 64,889,828 $ 66,756,888 $110,957,113 § 1,886,196
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
{with comparative information for December 31, 20186)

Exhibiti

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities -
Utility Utility Sewer Sewer Year internal
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users % 6070881 % 5794402 § 3,3B5447 5 3,840,557 § 9,456,328 $ 2984436
Recelpts for interfund services provided - 276,338 - 2,897 - -
Payments to suppliers (3,426,387) (3,649,6833) (2,288,910) (2,627,146) {5,715,307) (3,781,301)
Payments to employees {618,718) (629,843) (527,153} (436,869) {1,145,871) -
Payments for interfund services used {110,144) (107,264) (111,406} (107,882} {221,550) -
Net cash flows provided by (used in)
operating activities 1,915 622 1,683,800 457,978 471,457 2,373,600 (796,865)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances from other funds 155,700 - - - 250,600
Transfer out - paid for tax equivaient (1,029,649) (1,047,063} (3,194) (4,032 B43) -
Net' C}?sh Fiows from Noncapital Financing (873,048) (1,047 053) (3,194) " (877.143) 250,000
Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on capital debt (55,0000 {55,000) 57,048) (1,240,535) -
Payments from other governments - - 356,800 3,940,408 -
Payment of advances from other funds - - - (2,198,616) -
Interest on capital debt {35,788) {34,487} (536,193) (543,143) -
Capital contribution received 14,461 38,975 2! 38,975 43,241 -
Acquisition of capital assets (264,151 t'_(‘228,283_} (48,560) (542,442) -
Net cash provided (used) by capital {278,795) (Z890,609) (346,026) (541,087) -
and related financing activities &
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment eamnings 516,078 435,320 529,004 29,588
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 519,078 435,320 529,004 29,588
Net increase (decrease} in cash
and cash equivalents 360,641 773,253 557,422 1,484,374 (517,277)
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning 828,364 913,528 356,108 2,102,633 2,617,342
Cash and cash equivalents - Ending 1,189,005 1,686,781 $ 913528 % 3,586,907 % 2,100,085
Cash and Investments - Unrestrictéd 900,126 § 1,188,005 1508161 $ 519301 $ 3408317 $ 2,100,065
Cash and Investments - Restrictsd - - 178,590 394,227 178,580 -
5 1,000,126 § 1,188,005 1,686781 $ 913,628 § 3,586,807 § 2,100,065
Continued

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Page 36




Reconciliation of operating income {foss) to net

cash provided by operating activities
Cperating income {joss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 1o net

cash flows provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Bepreciation allocated o cther funds
Amortization
Nencperating revenues

(Increase) decrease in assets and deferred outflows

of resources
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Prepaid expense
Due from other funds
Due from other governments

Other post employment benefits asset

Pension benefits

Increase (decrease} in labilities and defferred

of resources

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Due to cther funds
Pension cbligations
Post employment retiremenit b
Compensated abse|
Tetal adjusiments
Net cash flows’provided by
operating activities’

Noncash Capital Activities

Cost of Utility plant installed and/or financed

by external parties or the City

See accompanying nofes to the financia! statements,

Exhibit |
{cenciuded)
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statenent of Cash Fiows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended Pecember 31, 2017
{with comparative information for December 31, 2016)
Business-type Activifies - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary % Gurrent Activities -
Utility Uitility Sewer Sewer Year Internal
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Yedl Totals Service Funds
$ 663672 $ 540,332 § (1,808.288) $ (1869,319) $ (1,244,818) § (889,467)
1,194,029 1,214,163 2,123,035 3,313,829 -
11,706 12,363 (12,363) - -
130,666 130,666 - 130,666 -
64,16 56,317 2,515 85,943 -
276,646 {45,691) (50,646)
2,604 46,529 -
(108} 4,518 149,465
45411 {12,984) -
- 11,592 - 11,692 -
2,319 - 2,319 - -
(8,584) - {61,995} - -
(98,670} 242,404 (39,848} 223,167 (26,447)
17,577 1,101 24756 2,058 20,200
(15,885) (127,799) 416 (89,423} {15,469} -
(83,391) 16,480 {56,663) $8,984 {120,054} -
(2,993) - (2,993) - {5,886} -
- {31,849) - (31,849) - -
1,251,950 1,143,568 2,366,266 2,340,776 3,618,216 92,602
sed in)
$ 1915622 § 1683000 § 457878 § 471467 % 2373600 % (795,865}

$ 14461 § 6923248 § 28,780 § 85987 % 43,241 §
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Exhibit J
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
As of December 31, 2017

City of Franklin
Agency Post Employment

Funds Benefits Trust
ASSETS
Cash $ 58,030,499 § 174,890
investments:
Fixed Income Securities - Corporate Bonds - 1,749,564
Domestic Equities - 24867,256
international Equities - 11
Total Cash & Investments 58,030,499

Accounts receivable 48,113
Taxes receivable '

Total assets

5,704,863

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Pue to other governments
Due to municipality
Special deposits
Total liabilities
Total net position restricted:
for post employment benefits |

- 131,100
71,959,258 -

13,718 -
$ 72,075,618 131,100

$ 5,673,763

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit K
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

City of Franklin
Post Employment
Benefits Trust

ADDITIONS
Contributions
City of Frankiin $ 422 684
Retirees 91,969
Net investment earnings 673,624

Total additions

4,188,277

.

DEDUCTIONS
Incurred claims 377,833
Prescription drug claims 111,666
Claims fees 19,879
Stop loss premiums less claims received (9,028)
Total deductions 500,350
Change in net position 687,927
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUSTJ&O’R
POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:
Beginning of year 4,885,836
End of year $ 5,573,763

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying summary of the City of Franklin's (the "City”} more significant accounting
policies is presented 1o assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data in
this report. These policies, as presented, should be reviewed as an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements. The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable fo governmental units.
A summary of the significant accounting policies follows:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

o
This report includes all of the funds of the City. The reporting entity for the ég@gags%ts of the
primary government and its component units. Component units are legally s ar%i organizations
for which the primary government is financially accountable or other organlzamﬁs for which the
nature and significance of their relationship with the primary governr@m are such that their
exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to b eading. The primary
government is financially accountable if (1) it appoints a voting mgferity of the organization's
governing body and itis able to impose its will on that organizatiops 4t appoints a voting majority
of the organization's governing body and therié potential f%[féjﬁgamzatlon to provide specific

financial benefits to, or impose specific finang Lﬁburdens‘a@ﬁ e primary government, (3) the
organization is fiscally dependent on and is a tal for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits fo, or impos c fi é%%urdens on, the primary government.
Certain legally separate, tax exemptdbrg ations sk _uld also be reported as a component unit
if all of the following criteria are met; (?%,@Q?ré; ec:ogg ic resources received or held by the separate
organization are entirely or almgg %@ntnre}y for irect benefit of the primary government, its
component units, or its constituéhts; the m,ary government or its component units, is entitled
fo, or has the abm'{y 10 acc@“ major ya the economic resources received or held by the

separate organization; a-a mlc resources received or held by an individual
organization that the psi gover , Or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability

to otherwise access niflc e primary government.

Component u ‘EL sing one of two methods, discrete presentation or blending.
Generaliy G ent U% ould be discretely presented in a separate column in the financial
statemenigs compo nt Ghit should be reported as part of the primary government using the
blending mbthod f | ts any one of the following criteria: (1) the primary government and the
component un% ubstantively the same governing body and a financial benefit or burden
relationship exists, (2 ) the primary government and the component unit have substantively the

same governing body and management of the primary government has operational responsibility
for the component unit, {3) the component unit serves or benefits, exclusively or almost
exclusively, the primary government rather than its citizens, or (4) the total debt of the component
unit will be paid entirely or aimost entirely from resources of the primary government. The City
has not identified any component units required to be discretely presented.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
A. REPORTING ENTITY (continued)
Blended Component Unit

The Community Development Authority (Authority) was created by the City in 1992 to serve as a
financing vehicle for certain Tax Incremental Districts (TID) development within the City. The
Authority is governed by a seven member board appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the
Common Council. Although it is legally separate from the City, the Authority is repo%ed as if it
were part of the primary government because its sole purpose is fo finance and iz e certain
TID development projects for the benefit of the City. The Authority had no finan¢ ;éi sactlons
during 2017, nor does the Authority own any assets or liable for any debt. The i}ﬁ , ho financial
statements are presented in this report. The Authority does not |ssu arate financial
statements.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS gﬁ %

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement N%% 74 —~ Fmang.»igﬁ‘%pomng for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Cther Than Pensions. This Statéga@nt feplac girequirements of Statements No.
43, Financial Reporting for Postemploymen wpenefit Pia % Yer Than Pensions. This standard
was implemented January 1, 2017. % ) _ %;3‘*

tn June 2015, the GASB issued Staiement No._ 75 = Accounting and Financial Reporting for

Postemployment Benefits Other than 1 -ens:onsﬁms Statement replaces the requirements of

Statements No. 45, Accountin %% Fing "?«?Repomng by Employers for Postemployment

Benefits Other Than Pensions S@mgnde %%@No 57 OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers

and Agent Multiple- Emp!oy a‘éﬂs for QRE ¥ This standard was implemented January 1, 2017.
Government- ~%§:mancxg§%§i‘é%ements

The statement of‘“ tyfosition (ExhiBit A) and statement of activities (Exhibit B) display information
about the rep r@%‘@ove&m%%ﬁgﬁg a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except
for fiduciar “%& i8s. Thé stz tements distinguish between governmental and business-type
activities’ overnmen;a attivities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenue a@ othe rgg xchange revenue. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in
part by fees ch external parties for goods and services provided.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree that direct expenses of a given segment or
function are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. The City does not allocate all indirect expenses to functions
in the statement of activities. Program revenue includes 1) charges to customers or applicants,
who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given
function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not included
among program revenue are reported as general revenue. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenue rather than as program revenue.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (continued)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the reporting entity are organized info funds with a fund considered to be
a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that constitute its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources, net position/fund equity, revenue and expenditures/expenses. Funds are
organized as major funds or nonmajor funds within the governmental and epterprise fund
statements. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental safid, enterprise
categories.

A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or me%ts the following
criteria: ;

a. Total assets and deferred outﬂows liabilites and dgf § inflows, revenue, or

‘r enterprise fund that met the 10

b. The same eiement of the individual
%‘*@p@ndmg total for all governmental and

percent test is at least 5 percenf
enterprise funds combined. & ™%

¢. In addition, any other gover‘@ma! 0 ‘%pr!se fund that the City believes is important
to financial statement uﬁﬁwﬁ‘gay bé;i%“;}led as a major fund.

Separate financial sta’fei@ zi?szre pLov et for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds with the eing excluded from government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmenpt,ft Hs and-mgjor individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fugd,figal cial s eg;énts

Major@grnm@?m nds
iy

General ﬁ?d — accoupts the City's primary operating activities. It is used to account for all
financialFresas r@%@%&cept those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fubg — aceounts for resource accumulation from taxes, special assessments and

other revenue along with payments made for principal and interest on long-term debt other
than enterprise fund debt.

TIF Districts Fund — accounts for resocurce accumulation from tax increments and cother revenue
of the TID along with payments made for capital cutlay, other expenditures, principal and
interest on long-term debt obligations of the TIDs. Each TID is a sub fund of the TID Fund.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Major Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
{expenses, including depreciation} of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenue earned, exp s@%ilncurred
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, mana ent control
accountability or other purposes.

Water Utility Fund — accounts for operations of providing water services &C:t‘?“r}&dents and bills
for those services.

Sanitary Sewer Fund — accounts for the cperations of providing s@@ sewer services for City
residents and bills for those services.

In addition the City reports: ‘f‘%%

Nonmajor Governmental Funds@

Special Revenue Funds - account fo roceeg of $pecific revenue sources (other than major
capital projects) that are Iegail% or poilcy frt cted to expenditures for specified purposes.
The funds include Library rating %&_ rary Auxiliary, Solid Waste Collection, Tourism

Commission, St Martin’s Eg} onatioff,{ivic Celebrations and Grant.

Gy

Capital Projects Funds count for tedources accumulated to be used for the purchase of
equipment, stre@ %Iace icquisition of land and the construction of capital
mprovement«:@w . Thet ds mciude Capital Cutlay, Equipment Replacement, Capital

Improveme ireet | é@;\zﬁﬁﬁent Utility Improvement and Development.

@“‘ﬁund T%a
internal ice k& ccount for the payment by the City for active employees of group health
and dentale’fu s for services and stop loss insurance charges and the billing of

departments%l agencies of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis for the services received.

Fiduciary Funds — account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations and/or governmental units. The fiduciary funds include a
property tax fund, an other agency fund that records the agency activity for emergency
government, monitoring and siting activities funded by others, an escrow fund and a post-
employment benefits trust fund for retiree group health costs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the
liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenue, expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred
inflows, liabilities and deferred outflows restilting from exchange and exchange-li £ 4 ynsactions
are recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes are recognized ein the

year that they are levied for. }
Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as receivables dé& erred inflows of

resources. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue afsSpon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider are met. Special assessmentsAge recorded as revenue
when earned. Receivables are recorded as revenue when serviced,are performed. At December

&rits. This is not reported as
recelvables because collectlon is subject to qeﬁ; events agClrring in the future and no formal

repayment schedule has been established. %

As a general rule, the effect of interfupg, ¢ ] hmlnated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to w s gen raI rul charges between the City's Water Utility
and Sanitary Sewer fund and varuous er fug€tigns of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the dtrec% sts and p, ram revenue reported for the various functions

concerned. g,
¢ é@?w%
Fund Financial@%ﬂé ents fw@
Governmental fund fin; nma! st%té% ts are reported using the current financial resources
measurement fo&g%% fied accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when it

is both me.c.is.urgg“l?gt “ﬁd av le’ Available means collectible within the current period of soon
enough th o bedy ise o pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
con51der t%i“reven tébe available if they are collected within 150 days of the end of the
current fisc perlodg@%ﬁd@ali other revenue o be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the _ iscal period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, exceptfor unmatured interest on long-term debt, claims, judgments, compensated
absences and pension expenditures which are recorded as a fund liability when due and payable

Property taxes are recorded the year levied as receivable and deferred inflow of resources and
are recognized as revenue the next year when services financed by the levy are provided.

intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenue in the period the City is entitled to
the resources and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the City are recorded as
receivables. Amounts not available or received prior to the entitlement period are recorded as
deferred inflows of resources.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
{continued)

Fund Financial Statemenis (continued)

Special assessments levied for benefits to property owners for installation of sanitary sewers,
water mains, roads, and other improvements are recorded as revenue when they become
measurable and available. Annual installments due in future years are recorded as receivabies

and deferred infiows of resources. “ %%%

Revenue susceptible to accrual includes property taxes, room taxes, public chajgeg4or'services
and interest. Other general revenue such as permits, fines and forfegﬁr hcenses and
miscellaneous revenue are recognized when received or when measurabletand available under
the criteria mentioned above. o

Deferred inflows of resources are reported on the governmentat fun "ﬁ?ance sheet. Deferred
inflows of resources arise from taxes levied in the current year tfiatfe for subsequent year's
operations. For governmental fund financial statements unearmnefffevénues arise where potential
revenue does not meet both the "measurable’ apd “available’ £riteria for recognition in the current
period. Unearned revenue arises when resoﬁ%%&@re recegsefore the City has a legal claim
to them, as when grant monies are receive 5@ in
subsequent periods, when both rev ﬁye% nitio

claim to the resources, the liability is %g

ence of qualifying expenditures. In
are met or when the City has a legal

Proprietary and fiduciary fund fingrigial stater@a S
the economic resources measu ’é{lt focﬁi%e the accrual basis of accounting. Agency fund
financial statements are re usmg@g% cerual basis of accounting and do not have a
measurement focus.

k3

Proprietary funds dig f??%?msh i}ig revenue and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating reven xpen gzgnerally result from providing services and delivering goods
in connection w roprf %ﬁund s principal operations. The principal operating revenue of
the Water an %@tary gt nds are charges to customers for sales and services provided.
The rates#Billéq in the Watef Utility are approved by the Public Service Commission. Sanitary
sewer chardes are biflé 1 at rates established by City policy based on the charges received from
the Milwaukee Metibpblitan Sewerage District and local operation and maintenance expenses.
The principal o%tl g revenue of the internal service fund is charges to other funds for group
health coverage.

Operating expenses for proprietary funds inciude the cost of sales and services, administration
and depreciation on capital assets. Revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenue and expenses,

All Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America reguires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could vary from those
estimates.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Assers, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY

1. Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with
an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The City of Franklin maintains two investment policies. The first covers all funds exgephfiduciary
funds for retiree health purposes. The objective of this policy is to generﬁsaggg, :g%n income,
consistent with safety and reasonable risk as defined under prudent perso ru1‘%§f;~ As operating
reserves, the guality, liquidity and maturity structure of the portfolio are rost important. The

investment policy: g%}
7

Poor's. W
%.0r less of the fair value of the

yand Agency securities that have

e
a. Requires a minimum rating at time of purchase of Aa3 by@tﬁ%ﬁ%oody’s or Standard &
5

b. Limits an issuer to 10% or less and as ;at classes to 3
portfolio with the exception of U.S. Gogmment Tregst
the full faith guarantee of the U.S. (4 w%"f‘mmerﬁmﬂ'& o b

c. Specifies a minimum amount of &8s qui\ggfggnf’. e maintained, an average life of the
portfolio not exceeding 6 yeafs andwno individhal issue with a maturity exceeding seven
years at the date of purchase telimit intereést rate risk.

d. Limits investments hig Jy% ensitivefﬁgﬁmarke’t changes through its duration and

g&%ntereﬁ rate risk.

n forei nﬁgw jed securities.

ents ’g‘ié]a&??g with a final maturity of seven years or less.

¥ B, B

In addition the City;a@fﬁ%ﬁment é’fﬁ%‘v’ﬁ restricts allowable investments to investments that follow

state statutes, sé"a.“&;%%ﬁ.%gm%ﬁ‘ﬁ% limits investments to:

4

diversification policies {g4im
e. Prohibits the invest
Limits derivative-ing

—h

a
i

a. Ti % epusis in agy gredit union, bank, savings bank, trust company or foan association

a rized to transatt business in the state and maturing in three years or less.

b. The'tocal Gevrerament Investment Pool (LGIP).

c. Bonds of securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.

d. Bonds orsgcurities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village,
town or school district of the State of Wisconsin. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition
district, a local professional baseball park district, a local professional football stadium
district, a cultural arts district, or by the University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics
Authority and the Wiscensin Aerospace Authority.

e. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest
rating category assigned of a nationally recognized rating agency.

f. Securities of an open-ended management investment company or investment frust
subject to various conditions and investment options.

g. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. AsSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

1. Cash and Investments (continued)
The second investment policy is for its fiduciary fund for retiree health purposes. The policy:

a. Requires the investment to be in a section 115 trust for retiree health purposeé%

b. Requires compliance with the “prudent person” standard. 4’%

¢. Requires asset allocation policy that considers the liability stre% %ﬂts the
relationship to current and projected assets, the historical performance @eapita! markets
and the perception of future econemic conditions.

d. Primary investment objectives are safety, diversification and retu%

e. Allows investment in various asset classes.

f.  Limits investment in eqguities to 75% of total assets to be m&&vﬁff

The City manages the various risks in its cash %&a&nd :nvestmeg&@oilows

held by é%ms

- depos ts ess.of BDIE insurance limits are maintained
inghe State LGIP*&éjsecured bank balances in

m ,r,a'i of atdegst 75% of the year end cash balances.

a. Custedial creditrisk - investmenig® e or third party custodian.

b, Credit risk — securities pu ipsed nee «ahave an AA or better investment rating.

¢. Concenfration of credi suer @ set class not to exceed 10% of the market value
of the portfolio with th é}( eptlon ﬁ%@ 'S, issued securities.

d. Interest rate risk < m nage é!mlting the length of maturity of newly purchased
investments a mg the a ||fe of the portfolio to control risk.

d at faif gﬁﬁe which is the amount at which an investment could be

Investments are‘*‘@sga{,
n between willing parties. Fair values are based on methods

exchanged |n & current tp %é
nhote 3.A. No investments are reported at amortized cost.

and input;

Adjustmen necgssawfm record investments at fair value are recorded in the operating statement
as increases or@;ﬁ&%@a@es in investment income (loss). Investment income (loss) on commingled
investments of vagous City Funds is allocated based on average investment balances.

The Wisconsin Local Government investment Pool {LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund
(SIF), and is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin
Chapter 25. The SIF reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the
LGIP have the right to withdraw funds in total on one day’s notice. At December 31, 2017, the fair
value of the City's share of LGIP assets was substantially equal to the amount reported in these
statements.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. AsSsSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

2. Receivables

Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. In addition
to property taxes for the municipality, taxes are collected for and remitted to the state government,
county government, three local school districts, technical college district and tropolitan
sewerage district. Taxes for all other governmental units billed in the curren% % for the
succeeding year are reflected as receivables and due to other taxing unifs on t Mpanying
fiduciary funds statement of fiduciary net position.

Property tax calendar — 2017 tax roll: %
Lien date and levy date Dec %%\éow
Tax bills mailed er 2017
Payment in full, or » XA‘ uary 31, 2018
First instaliment due ¢ A =“dakhuary 31, 2018
Second instaliment due %’& s, wMarch 31, 2018
Third installment due @ @i}% May 31, 2018
Personal property taxes in full & January 31, 2018
Final tax settlement with County % & August 20, 2018
Tax deed by County — 201Z . m%

Delinguent real estate ta;ge% %ﬁw October 2020

Accounts receivable havﬁf%)e n show
provision for uncollect@lﬁ ounts:
their right by law t@ pia&e delmqu

s&fvable has been made for enterprise funds because of
s on the tax roll.

Puring the cou %,g%"[ransactlons oceur between individual funds that may result in
amounts we H@tween %§ Short-term interfund loans are reported as “due to and from other
funds”. L‘&% terim intel oans are reported as “advances from and to other funds”.

[nterfund recei Q}e d payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated
in the statement™gf net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and the business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as “internal balances”.

In the general fund financial statements, advances fo other funds are offset equaily by
nonspendable fund balance which indicates that they do not constitute expendable available
financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation. Advances in alt other
governmental funds are classified in fund balance based on the availability of repayments for use.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. AsSSETs, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY {continued)

3. Inventories and Prepaid ltems

Governmental fund inventory items, except fuel inventory, are charged to expenditures when
purchased. The fuel inventory is recorded at cost on a first-in first-out basis using the consumption
method of accounting. The cost of such inventories is recorded as expendlturesfexpe?%ses when
consurmed rather than when purchased. Year end inventory was not sngmﬂcant %@%

Proprietary fund inventories are generally used for construction an “’fo %peratlon and -~
maintenance work. They are not for sale. Material and supplies on ha t year end are
considered immaterial,

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable fo futureg@é inting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund fman@ | statements. The cost of
prepaid items is recorded as expendltures/expenses Q %g%nsumed rather than when

purchased. 1 %

Mandatory segregation of assets are p nted %g‘f%% stricted assets. Such segregation is required
by agreements with external pac;nes Current‘sr«u ilities payable from restricted assets are so
classified. The Pension Asset f ny is re as resfricled. This asset represents funds held
by the Plan Trust, which ca y be usé%ﬁto settle Plan obligations. The excess of restricted
assets over current hala;l#ﬁek il be @éﬁ Tirst for equipment replacement. The remainder, if
generated from earnln gs, 8 hown a% fricted net position.

10n&§%§w§

4. Restricted Assets

5. Benefit C ?

For purposes ﬁréeasur?{%}e net pension obligations (assets), deferred outflows of resources
and defewg inflows qf"re rces related to pensions, and pension expense, information about
the fiduci net positi dns of the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) and the City of Franklin
Defined Benefiff Retirgment Income Plan (DPW) and additions to/deductions from WRS and
DPW's fiduciary het position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
WRS and DPW. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions}
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. AssSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY {continued)

5. Benefit Obligations (continued)

Far purposes of measuring the net QPEBR liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPER expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trugt and
additions to/deductions from the City of Franklin Post Employment Benef} tust's
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are%é%ﬁ d by
the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust. For this purp 5@% ve City of -
Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust recognizes benefit paymentSawiden due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are repUkted at fair value,
except for money market investments and participating intere%&r%ing investment

contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of on%g;ﬁ' *or less, which are

reported at cost. éz} &

&

6. Capital Assets %ji?% é‘%
o~ AN
AR
Capital assets, which include property,plént and ipment, are reported in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital asset; hare defing g%he government as assets with an initial cost
of more than $5,000 for g%i}%’tﬁ%pitaﬁ% s and $10,000 for infrastructure assets with
&

Government-Wide Statemen

estimated useful lives of twe irs of ndore. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost%ij& ctal amo@gﬂ&é‘?”?e not available. Donated capital assets are recorded
at acquisition value q}%‘é% ate of rjﬁfﬁin. Additions to and replacements of capital assets of
business-type activitie8.are recogded®at original cost, which includes material, iabor, overhead,
and an al}owancé %r;the cos Hgrds used during construction when significant.
ﬁm& Lt

For tax-exeq ’f%bt, thﬂ“é@ﬁount of interest capitalized equals the interest expense incurred
during cggggru%tion ngtted¥against any interest from temporary investment of borrowed fund
proceeds. Mo ne ipterest was capitalized during the current year. The cost of renewals and
betterments rel%gg‘%@c etirement units is added to plant accounts. The cost of property replaced,
retired or otherwige disposed of, is deducted from plant accounts and, generally, together with
removal costs less salvage, is charged to the applicable function.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the statement
of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. Depreciation
is provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation,
The range of useful lives by asset type follows:

Buildings and improvemenis 5-50 Years
Machinery and equipment 2-30 Years
Water and sewer infrastructure 20-100 Years
Infrastructure 20-90 Years
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY {continued)

6. Capital Assets (continued)
Fund Financial Statements
In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund opergtions are
accounted for as capifal ouflay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acq ﬁrg% Capital

assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same in the .- grhment-wide
statements.

7. Deferred Inflows of Resources and Deferred Outflows of e"spurcres

A deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net ition/fund balance that
applies to a future period and will not be recognized saf.8n outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until that future time., A deferred inffow’ of resources represents an
acquisition of net position/fund balance that %Jles to a - period and therefore will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revem@z’;@ntil that 1’t’s.igeme:

In governmental funds, property tax{% wvable, spe ’%al assessments and interest revenue not
yet due are not recognized as revenyg®in theseurrent period. For the government-wide and
proprietary fund fype financial statements, clal assessments and interest revenue are
recognized as revenue in the clrren perlodgji% leaves property tax receivable as a deferred
inflow of resources in the state‘%ﬁt of neﬂ”p@ﬁltlon

Certain items affect th éﬁpenslo tion {asset) are amortized over the period determined
{o be affected by ;hgf‘é ge. THhé }a nce at year end of these items is reported as deferred
outflows of resoxﬁ@r defengd ows of resources section of the statement of net position.

N

Eﬁsated *Absences

Under tj;{of empley nt employees may earn compensatory time and are granted sick leave,
severance payg ggd% cations in varying amounts. Only benefits considered to be vested are
disciosed in theSe statements. All vested compensatory time, severance pay and vacation pay
are accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements. A ligbility for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured. For example a liability, as a result of employee resignations or retirements are payable
with expendable availabie resources.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. AsSSETS, DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESCURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY {continued)

8. Compensated Absences (continued)

Payments for vested compensatory time, severance pay and vacation pay will be made at rates
in effect when the benefits are used. Accumulated vested compensatory time, severance pay and
vacation pay liabilities are determined on the basis of current salary rates and inclyde salary
refated payments. Vacation and compensatory time are used on a first-in, ﬁr,%%t t basis.
Accordingly all accrued amounts are considered to be due within one year. Seveggah@% due within
one year is estimated based on employee age and expected retirement. % j}ﬁ%

Ty

9. Long-term Obligations/Conduit Debt f*

All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and g%gmgss type resources are
reported as liabiliies in the government-wide statements. The erm obligations consist of
notes and bonds payable and accrued compemsated absenc

s'r

Long-term obligations for governmental fu e not re 6 ed as liabilities in the fund financial
statements. The face value of debt (piu a@% mi teported as other financing sources and
payments of principal and interest ar%;l ed as ex Bndltures The proprietary fund accounting
is the same as it is in the governmen ide stat@;ﬁ%nts

For the government-wide st % anﬁ@netaw fund statements, bond premiums and
discounts are amortized over ife of tHe-istue using the interest rate method. The balance at
year end is shown as angn‘ta:« ase oré;degf‘rease in the liability section of the statement of net

osition. o
p LN ““‘% ‘}%
The City has app %ﬁ‘ﬁ :ssuane:gy@ “industrial development revenue bonds (IDRB) for the benefit
of private bu51 nte m;é =“{DRB’s are secured by mortgages or revenue agreements on

assomated&@gp‘ t‘:t§ of th us%ness enterprises. The IDRB’s do not constitute indebtedness of the
City. Acc&@mg the bonds™are not reported as liabilities in the financial statements. Five series
of IndustriafRev nue"nds originally issued with an aggregate principal amount of $13,075,000
are outstandin W«@@f}ecember 31, 2017 balance of $7,371,535.

5
10. Claims and Judgmenis

Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements are met. Claims and judgments that would normally be
Hguidated with expendabie available financial resources are recorded during the year as
expenditures in the government funds. If they are not to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources, no liability is recognized in governmental fund financial statements. The
refated expenditure is recognized when the liability is liquidated. Claims and judgments are
recorded in the government-wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses when the related
liabilities are incurred. There were no significant claims or judgments at year end.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

11. Equity Classifications
Government-Wide Statements
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: %E

kY

a. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets, Q@% Qjﬁg‘ccﬁmulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, morigdges; fotes, or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or imgrevement of those
assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflowsfof resources that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of thig esssets or related debt
are also included in this component of net position. Unspeni refated debt proceeds are
excluded from the calculation of net investment in capitaé&aﬁse’fs.

%, s

b. Restricted net position — Consists of né&%@ition wit@*&%’traints placed on their use either
by 1) external groups such as cred' rantorscontiibutors, or laws or regulations of
other governments or, 2) law throufjhéeBnstitfignalprovisions or enabling legislation; and

includes restricted assets redygceddy liabilities{elated to those assets. Generally, a liability

relates to restricted assets if thieasset regifs from a resource flow that also results in the

[ thisg e
recognition of a liability or i Iiabiiity g’gﬁﬁe‘liq uidated with the restricted assets reported.

¢. Unrestricted net posie@;» e nef}f;%bunt of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and defeﬁ'%“ inflows ﬁ%rﬁ'éources that are not included in the determination of

net investment jin. tabital asset&of the restricted components of net position.
g &

” 2
The net positionféé“"etg n indu@gsgﬁ adjustment for capital assets owned by the business-type
activities coium%@ it finameedby the debt of the governmental activities column. The amount is

a reductiop investment in capital assets”, and an increase in “unrestricted” net position,
shown oﬁ@ the totaj%o!u'n. A reconciliation of this adjustment is as follows:
R A
{9{@% Governmental  Business-type
%, Activities Activities Adjustment Total
Net investment in capital assets  § 115,417,617 § 86,584,568 $ (155,290) $ 201,848,895
Unrestricted 11,303,345 4,179,263 155,290 15,637,888

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESQURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

11. Equity Classifications (continued)
Fund Statements
Fund balance of governmentai funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The govern 5 éself can
i

establish fimitation on the use of resources through either a commitment {(got ed fund
balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be gg%d only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the government’s highestedegigion-making authority.
The governing council is the highest level of decision-making aut Wthe government that
can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal y a@&g%mmit fund balance. Once
adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinarg&e remains in 4ol eeruntil a similar action is taken
{the adoption of another ordinance) fo remo g-of Jevise FQ@Q‘*%'%tation. The City does not report

i T
any committed fund balance. . &@%‘@%
Amounts in the assigned fund balange ‘%Siﬁcatioﬁ%ée intended {o be used by the government
for specific purposes but do not meet® criterigttp be classified as committed. The governing

councit (Common Council) has
assign fund balance (Resolutigrfa
as it does when appropriatifig fuhd baldhce™o cover a gap between estimated revenue and
appropriations in the subfg%gt yea ’é{@;@*ﬁﬁopriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments
generally only exist terppdegrily. In o@hégﬁﬁ/ords, as additional action does not normally have to be
taken for the removaf 6f ah assigdment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is

essential to eithekgéaiove o rellisé*a commitment.
fe@qfeve ok el

o

ax%?oiutionéat?ﬁhprized the Director of Finance & Treasurer to
014-7025 %QéCommon Council may also assign fund balance

When corpmit ssigri d unassigned resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy
to use comy¥ ittéd resqurces first, then assigned resources and then unassigned resources, as
they are nekded.

The City has adgpted a fund balance poficy (Res. 2016-7216) for all governmental funds
supported by tax levy as follows: the ratio of year end fund balance to current year Expenditures
shall target a range between 20 and 30%. The amount of Fund Balance will be taken into
consideration when establishing the following year's budget. At least 15% of the succeeding year
expenditure budget be maintained for working capital. Any non-spendable fund balance of the
General Fund shall be excluded from the ratio. As of the year ended December 31, 2017, the City
was in compliance with the fund balance policy.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. AsseTs, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

12. Comparative Data

The basic financial statements include comparative data for the prior year for individual enterprise
funds in the fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in
financial position and operations of these funds. This comparative data is not at the level of detail
required for a presentation in conformity with general accepted accounting prmc:ple{% gordingly,
such information should be read in conjunction with the City’s financial statemn fts. for’the year
ended December 31, 2016 from which the data was derived. Also, certain m presented in
the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent wat current year's
presentation,

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANGE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary information is derived from the ar
same basis of accounting for each fur " deséTbedn Note 1 C with the exception of
encumbrances, transfers from the Ggnefal-Fund to Gpecial Revenue Funds and tax equivalent
from the Water Utility. Actual (budgetag ¥y basis)*axpenditures presented reflect actual (GAAP}
expenditures adjusted for expe res budgeigd under the prior period and encumbrances
expected to be liquidated u % “period budget. Actual (budgetary basis) revenue

presents the tax equivalent Jtility as tax revenue while GAAP basis statements
present this item as a tre f

A hudget has bee .;.ep_i for %‘*”%eneral Debt Service, TID #3, TID #4, TID #5, Library
Operating, Librar x;ltary Se, d" Waste Collection, CIVIC Celebrations, St Martin’s Fair,
Donations, Gr%%l‘r:%capa?f %@gﬂ y, Equipment Replacement, Capital Improvement, Street

ats Uttty Im ent, Development, Sanitary Sewer and Water Utility funds. A
ot been fg%maﬁfadopted for the Tourism Commission Fund.

The budget arrg ﬁresenied include any amendments made during the year. The City may
authorize transfé’r’:;sng of budget amounts within departments. Transfers between departments and
changes to the overall budget must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the Common Council.
Supplemental appropriations during the year were not significant. Appropriations lapse at the end
of the year unless specifically carried over. Carryovers to the following year amounted to
approximately $1.3 million. Budgets are adopted for personnel and non-personnel expenditures
at the function ievel.
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY {continued)
B. LIMITATIONS ON THE CITY’S TAX LEVY

Wisconsin law limits the City’s future tax levies. Generally the City is limited 1o its prior tax levy
dollar amount (excluding TIF Districts), increased by the greater of the percentage change in the
City's equalized value due to new construction or zero percent. Changes in debt service from one
year to the next are generally exempt from this limit with certain exceptions, The City is required
o reduce its allowabie levy by the estimated amount of fee revenue increase it collects*:for certain
services, if those services were funded in 2013 by the property tax levy. Levies ca t% wcreased

above the allowable limits if the amount is approved by referendum. fm‘*&%@@ %,
C. EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS %’w@g

The City controls expenditures at the function level (e.g. public safgtyy For the year ended

December 31, 2017 the following fund functions had expenditures ;ﬁgﬁfﬁéding budget:
gy 0

Budget
Fund/Function Exp&ntiitures

S
129@%:&

AT Excess Expenditures
Expenditures Over Budget

Civic Celebration

Culture, recreation, and education 136,353 § 7,016
Donation
Culture, recreation, and education mﬂfg,‘aﬂo 2,104 104

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES O g’% FONDS %«@

A. CASHAND INVEs“m@?‘

The City mamtams.@‘éié%h and g\fgigiment pool that is utilized by all funds. Each fund’s portion of
this pool is displayed'en the Sig égggaeni of net position and balance sheet as cash and investments
of the Cit n%@ idition, inwestgients are separately held by several of the funds.

r oy, y

Deposits imfeach localnd area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for time
and savmgs a&o@%and $250,000 for demand deposit accounts {interest-bearing and
noninterest-bedrind). Tn addition, if deposits are held in an institution outside of the state in which
the government 1% located, insured amounts are further limited to a total of $250,000 for the
combined amount of all deposit accounts.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)
A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

The City's bank accounts are also insured by the State of Wisconsin Deposit Guarantee Fund in
the amount of 3400,000 per financial institution. However, although the fund had reserves
available at December 31, 2017, the future availability of resources to cover the losses cannot be
projected because provisions of the 1985 Wisconsin Act 35 provided that the amount in the fund
will be used to repay public depositors for losses until the appropriation is exhausted at which
time the fund is abolished. This coverage has not been considered in computing %ustgd;al credit

risk. Q@

The City maintains a collateral arrangement with its main bank to provi pifateralization in
excess of deposits maintained at the bank. The collateral is maintained in rm of a letler of
credit from the Federal Home |_oan Bank of Cincinnati in the amount ofg ;OOO ,000.

Cash and investments as shown on the December 31, 2017 statengtiofnet position are subject
to the following risks:
Carrylng Bank & Inv sﬁg:ﬁ
Valu - Bal Risks
tocal Government Investment Pool  § 1, S%V %6 $ ‘%%%‘ 8*908 Credit
#5234 500 Custodial credit

Money market funds
Certificates of deposit 1,000,000 Custodial credit
U.8. agencies 13,027,030 Credif, custodial credit, interest
rate and concentration of credit
1,008,760 Credit, custodial credit, interest
rate and concentration of credit

Municipal bonds

Corporate notes & 2,001,408  Credit, custodial credit, interest
p@%ﬁ E rate and concentration of credit
Total fixed | :ncome lgﬁm nis %% 8,640,606 18,640,606
Equity funds iﬁf 3,684,632 3,684,632 Custodial credit
Fixed income furfz %ﬁv 1,749,564 1,748,564 Credit and interest rate
Cash and de &@ﬁepos@% 70,612,961 63,005,108 Custodial credit
Total % % $ 94687763 % 87,079,911

Reconciliaffen to th@ﬁg cial statements is shown below:

o
Per Statement of Net Position
Primary Government:

Unrestricted cash and investments $ 30,869,588
Restricted cash and investments 178,580

Per Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds
Agency Fund 58,030,499
City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust 5,609,086
$ 94 687,763
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk For deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial
institution failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to the City. As of December 31, 2017,
none of the City's total bank balances of $63,005,109 were uninsured and uncollateralized and
therefore exposed to custodial credit risk. For investments — Custodial credif risk is the risk that,
in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. All of¢the City's
investments have a tri-party relationship with the investments held by a party mde}aeﬁéent of the
party managing the investment.
%

Credit Risk Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty will n@; il its ‘'obligation.
The City's policy requires a minimum credit rating of Aa3 at time of pyrehase, The City's fixed
income investments subject to credit risk include agencies securltl j%mreute asset backed
securities, corporate bonds, government repurchase agreements an e&money market funds and
were rated by Moody’s Investor Service. ; %_

As of December 31, 2017, 70.5% of the ﬁx come mve@tmfénts were in rated fixed income
investments and subject to credit risk. The ratings as a per‘e\g‘até%e of the total investment portfolio
were as follows: Aaa at 8.7%, and /Aa% g 44%%& portfolic makeup of fixed income
investments was treasury and ag %éﬁ%f curities af 56. 5%, corporate securities at 8.7%,
Municipal Bonds at 4.4%, Local Gov ent !nu@@akment Pool at 5.9% and money market funds
at 1.0%. The Local Government nyestment PQ@QS not rated. Equities and fixed income mutual
funds held in trust at 23.6% m %’ﬁf the ‘f%@der of the investments and are not individually
rated. ' :

Concentration of Cre it:F «iswf( Concé %ﬁﬁion of credit risk is the risk of loss atiributed to a large
investment position in, fasmgle g As of December 31, 2017 no issuer other than U.S.
Treasury and A cuntres«d f;have the full faith guarantee of the U.S. government had a
position of grea% nte agaf?ém;it of the portfolic.

Interest %ﬂe isk Inte e§t§e risk is the risk that rising interest rates will have an adverse impact
on the f lue of t nvestments in the portfolio. The longer the maturities in the portfolio the
greater the risk g%id‘fés s in portfolio value.

The portfolio poligy limits this risk by limiting the length of permitted investments and limits the
purchase of investments highly sensitive to market changes.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

As of December 31, 2017, the City’'s investments exposed to interest rate risk were as follows:

Fair Investment Maturity in years
Investment type Value Less than 1 2-3 4-5 6-7

U.S. treasuries

and agencies $ 13,027,030 $ 2,007,673 $8,419,014 $2,510042 &
Municipal bonds 1,008,760 1,008,760 - %‘%%
Corporate notes 2,001,408 1,004,202 997,206 o ;" : -
Fixed income funds 1,749,564 149 739 348,554 3@6 %@ 3 905,258

Total $ 17,786,762 $4,260674 § 9,764,774 % 5%55 $ 905,258

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair vaiue ﬁerarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based.on he valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset, Level 1 mputs are guoted ‘Qemg;, in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other%%ewable ;gﬁ%“ Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. 5 !

Market approach — prices or otlgg? |nformatt§%i§om market transactions involving identical or

similar assets. P % , %%}
o A B (™ As of December 31, 2017:
Investment Type %‘;“% Leval 4 Level 2 Level 3 Total
e paa
US treasuries and ag;ina s $f 47 - $13,027,030 $ - $13,027,030
Municipal bonds & %* o, Loy - 1,008,760 - 1,008,760
Corporate note§ i, o : 2,001,408 - 2,001,408
Total %%% Qaﬁv - 16,037,198 - 16,037,198
Y
Equity funds é‘“}‘% 3,684,632 - - 3,684,632
Fixed income fands ™ 1,749,564 - - 1,749,564
Total & $ 5,434,196 $16,037,198 $ - $21,471,394

B. RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist of accounts, taxes, notes and special assessments from citizens and others.
Receivables are reported net of uncollectible amounts. The reserve for bad debts, principally for
personal property taxes and ambulance revenue, was $ 66,184 at December 31, 2017. Other
than the special assessment receivables, all other receivables are expected to be collected within
one year.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

B. RECEIVABLES (continued)

Governmental funds report unavailable or unearned revenue in connection with receivables for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilittes of the current period.
Property taxes levied for the subsequent year are not earned and cannot be used to liquidate
liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in. connection
with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the wvarious components of unavailable revenue and uneamed revenue reporied in the
governmental funds were as follows: %

Unavailable Unearmned M@%i

Governmental funds: PNy
Subsequent year property taxes $ - $ 24734, 2605..6 ¢ 24,734,269
Special assessments not yet due 845,383 gﬁm— 845,383

Total deferred inflows of resources
for governmentat funds $ 845 383 §% 2@7@2’ 269 § 25,579,652
£~
C. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS ﬁ,ﬁ& f”“?’j

in 2011, the City entered into an tnterg@@}ﬁ a@?@éperation agreement with another
government for the construction and of th ‘Creek Interceptor Sewer. The terms
of this agreement include that the ot }vernment will reimburse the City for substantially all of
the debt service costs resulfing frop the City takirig on a State Clean Water Fund Loan. Those
reimbursements will continue 0}% ;%e life pf ‘aT@an ending in 2031. This is presented as due
from other governments in thg—s taternent ofh osmon Annuat principal and interest payments
to maturity received as pag@% 5 agrea‘rﬁe"&i are as follows:

A
é@ﬁ"“‘a Endln ST Business-type Activities

& \:%E_ecembe Principal Interest
%j% %} $ 1214723 $ 477,809
1,244 629 447 534
1,275,272 416,514
& 2021 1,306,669 384,731
% 2022 1,338,839 352,164
2023-27 7,205,164 1,243,562
2028-31 6,429,397 321,385
Total $ 20,014,603 $ 3,643,700

D. RESTRICTED ASSETS

In accordance with the City's ordinance enacting a sewer user charge system and regulations of
the Department of Natural Resources, the Sanitary Sewer Fund — an Enterprise Fund,
mcorporated an equipment replacement charge as a component of the rate structure to be used
for significant mechanical equipment replacement as required by the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources. Revenue generated from this charge is accumulated and used for
replacement of certain equipment. The balance in this account at December 31, 2017 is $178,590.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2017 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets not depreciated:
Land $ 24623751 % 449200 3 . 25,072,951
Construction in progress 1,019,925 1,964,333 2,541 ,453%%?% 442,805
Total capital assets not depreciated 25,643,676 2,413,533 2,541 ,45“3%%2 3 25,515,756
Capital assets depreciated: %«*@% ,
Buildings & improvements 26,770,132 210,159 19,945 26,860,342
Machinery & equipment 17,924,405 854,579 { 18,562,309
Infrastructure 98,419,149 6,003,168 q@;”% 28,471 104,393,846
&
Total capital assets depreciated 143,113,686 7, 16&9% 465,095 149,816,487
T,
Less: Accumulated depreciation for: ﬁ%‘%@ ﬁwﬁ
Buildings & improvements 108 32 w:% 75,001 41,981 10,909,452
Machinery & equipment 167848,700 @ 1333 314,956 11,538,077
Infrastructure ﬁz 234 7@*@‘} 754,533 28,471 30,960,846
% =
Total accumulated depreciation g 50, 35?9&'5 3,435,867 385,408 53,408,375
s
Net capital assets deprec:ated % %’24 u,ﬁ 770 3,732,039 79,687 96,408,122

Governmental activities wpté%‘assets @eﬂ%

net of accumulated dﬁi%%on %;‘}%18 399,446 § 6145572 $ 2,621,140 $ 121,923,878

G
%%?j to functions as follows:

- S % %
Depreciation ex }“ﬁ%‘e wa

e G e
Governg ”é%ﬂ’al Activiti
Generat overnm%g
Public safet)éf %

Public work

Health & husr?% services
Culture & recreation
Conservation & development

Total governmental activities depreciation expense
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)

E. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Dispositions  Transfers Balance
Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not depreciated:
Land § 888479 § - § - % - % 888,479
Capital assets depreciated: . 3
Buildings & improvements 6,677,157 - - 5,285 6,682,442
Machinery & equipment 5,385,346 500,158 130,381 5,749,838
Infrastructure 134,145,872 43,241 - ﬁfﬂ%e%% 134,189,113
Total capital assets depreciated 146,208,375 543,399 130,381 ‘%‘g;,‘w ',5 - 146,621,383
Less: Accumulated depreciation for;
Buiidings & improvements 1,510,169 208,796 - 1,716,865
Machinery & equipment 3,694,289 255,261 178,460 3,897,620
Infrastructure 31,508,030 2,851,872 (178,460} 34,181,442
Total accumulated depreciation 36,612 %ﬁ% 3,313, Qgﬁ 130,381 - 30,796,036
Net capital assets depreciated 109 59%&? A&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ) - - 106,825,357

Business-type Activities Capital Assets,
Net of Accumulated Depreciation ?’55 1t

84,36@@@(2,770,530) $ -5 - $ 107,713,836

Depreciation expense was Cl@?j?d t?) fur%&@ as follows:
Busmess—Type%&”%%itles i

Water W $ 1,194,029

Sewer? s s 2,119,900
&

To%‘?ﬁg v%inﬂss:—@tctivities depreciation expense 5 3,313,829

Page 62




CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
F. LEASE DISCLOSURES
OPERATING LEASES
The City has entered into several lease agreements with telecommunications companies, wherein
the City has agreed to aliow the use of water utility property for the purpose of telecommunication

relays. Revenue from this activity totaled $ 106,081 for the year ended December 31, 2017, Future
minimum lease payments receivable in conjunction with the leases are as follows: %\}%

&

Governmental  Business-Type . f%w@}
Fiscal Year Activities Activies Total # “““’é"%@
2018 $ 55,892 § 55892 § 11 7%‘-?
2019 43218 43,218 ., 867335
2020 20,778 20,778  £+41556
2021 1,913 1,013 o™ 3,826
P
Totals % 121 ,&01 $ 121 ,,&@@ﬁ 243,602

fl

e e _
AD AN@@A?A@N ' TRANSFERS

5

Interfund receivables/payables result f Qn 'theti@e’t‘.ﬂean the dates that {1) interfund goods
and services are provided or renggﬁarsable expef ditures occur, (2) fransactions are recorded in
the accounting system and (; \ entsﬁ%méen funds are made. In afl cases amounts are
repaid within one year. ' pe

& 4 : ’ .
The interfund receivabge%@nd pava 185,35t December 31, 2017 are as foliows:

%@% . ﬁ%%&“‘g Receivable Fund

%

oo B &% Water Sanitary
_#™Payable Fud_¢ _ General Utility Sewer Total

G%@éraw; $ - § 18,352 § - % 18,352
TiPepfstricts 24,695 ; ; 24,695
Non-Major 36,552 - - 36,552
Water Utility 4 495 - 44 650 49,145
Sanitary Sewer - 20,908 - 20,908
Totals $ 65742 $ 39260 $ 44850 $ 149652
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

G. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Advances

The City of Franklin provides short and long term advances to its TIF Districts. The amounts
advanced are either from proceeds of a borrowing or from fund reserves. They are used to enable
the TIF Districts to carry out approved project plans. The TIF Districts interest rate is based upon
the interest rate incurred by the Debt Service Fund on its borrowings or the reinvestment rate
available to other funds. The advances will be repaid as the TIF DIS’tFICt resources’ e available.

portion of the payment.

Receivable Fund

Capital Projects  Internal @% Due within

Payable Fund General Development Service {%ﬁ “Total one year
TIF Districts 3 75,000 $ 25880 $ 25 OW’” 125,000 $ 125,000
Water Fund 155,700 e S 155700 16,000

$ 230700 $ ¢ %%oo ﬁ%@és%oo $ 280,700 $ 141,000
Vs ﬁ‘% *%g
Transfers %;%@ @g

Generally, transfers are usedt@;& ove ne e from the funds that collect them to the fund
that the budget requires to dxpand them), " ‘move receipts restricted to debt service from the
funds collecting the rece xgt@t@ﬁe Deb;f,Bg ce Fund and (3) use unrestricted revenue collected
in the General Fund tofigarice vano%zgrbgrams accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorg,a i5 £y

Vi %%sﬁ

&
I’

nted mt '@f?nd financial statements during the year ended December 31,

Transfers as p

2017 were s%gi

Transfers Out

Nonmajor
General Governmental Enterprise Fund
Fund Funds Funds Totals
Transfers in ~

General Fund $ - $ 2695¢ $ 1,032,843 $ 1,059,783
Debt Service Fund - 113,997 - 113,897
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 57,138 661 - 57,789
Total 3 57,138 % 141,608 3 1,032,843 3 1,231,589

Current year transfers into the debt service fund from nonmajor governmental funds were
completed for principal and interest payments. Transfers from the enterprise funds fo the
general fund were for tax-equivalent payments. All other transfers were completed for generat
operational purposes and capital activities.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
G. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Transfers {continued)

A reconciliation of fund statement transfers to government wide transfers for the year ended
December 31, 2017 is as follows:

Governmental Funds Enterprise Funds
Transfers in per fund statements $ 1,231,589 3% %
Transfers out per fund statements {198,746) %«“{%@32 843)
Capital Contributions from governmental (fgzz‘j%& ‘
funds to enterprise funds {(43,241) 43,241
Government Wide Transfers 3 989,602 $ %&’ (989,602)
o7
H. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS @f}%ﬁ
General Obligation Debt Wt

.
efe as follows:

Amounts
§§% jing Ending due within
ance “‘Mdlt ions Delefions Balance one year

Governmental Activities ‘%—’% é;}
General obligation debt ‘%% 10 2@@ 1630000 $ 3,030,000 $ 8845000 % 2,315,000

51,071 93,852 217,622

Premium . {%&%‘ 295

. %“%,403 1,681,071 3,123,852 9,062,622 2,315,000

Sub-total ﬁ%ﬁ
Compensated absengeﬁﬁwﬁ% z;— §

Accrued vacationg %%}Q‘ 42%&&‘ 451,180 1,017,970 1,041,653 427,497 427 496

Accrued sgyerar aﬁﬁay 1,403,107 149,098 140,959 1,411,246 114,247

Accrued peﬂ.satory tigge 156,464 275,865 288,969 183,360 183,359
Total compensated abs ‘ﬁ% 2,050,751 1,442,833 1,471,581 2,022 103 725,102
Net pension obligaf ) - WRS 1,344 496 - 651,834 892,662 -
Net pension obligation -

City of Frarklin Defined

Benefit Retirement Plan 788,657 808,904 - 1,597,461
Net OPEB obligation 2,296,829 - 302,532 1,894,297 -
Total benefit obligations 6,480,633 2,251,837 2,425 947 6,308,523 725,102
Governmental activities

Long-term fiabilities $ 16686036 § 3932908 $ 5548799 § 15368145 § 3,040,102

Page 65




CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017
NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

General Obligation Debt (continued)

Restated Amounts
Beginning Ending due within
Balance Additions Deletions Balance one year
Business-type Activities §
General obligation debt $ 22380228 $ - % 1240535 § 21 139:6933 $1,269,723
Discount (11,534) - (1,109) @ﬁ%ﬁs% -
Subtotal 22,368,694 - 1,239,426 @f 21‘;‘?}29,268 1,260,723
%.
Compensated absences @w
Accrued vacation pay 44 933 45,048 43 832, 46,148 46,149
Accrued severance pay 75,604 - %ﬁﬁf 75,248 4,001
Accrued compensatory time 27.506 7.120 w& U 28.646 28,646
Total compensated absences 148,133 &, 92,168 @O 258 150,043 78,886
Net OPEB obligation & 2 g’%@ 5,986 39,454 -
Net pension obligation -
City of Franklin Defined
Benefit Retirement Plan By 2990, - 779,713 -
Total Benefit Obligations %%576 ”‘721 @m%ﬁ&% 733 56,244 969,210 78,886
“%a ® % “:
Business-fype activities @j}
Long-erm liabiliies ~ +, 22 94%5‘“ 448733 $ 17295670 $ 22,098478 $ 1,348,609
ﬁ"%@g"

@%
&
SN
<

Page 686




CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017
NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Details of general obligation notes and bonds payable as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Balance
Date of Interest Principal Interest Qriginal QOutstanding
Type Issue Rate Payable Payable Amount 12/31
General obligation Refunding Bonds
4/20/2018 2.0% 3M/17-21 31 & 91 § 5770,000 $%§jﬁ%;) 000
General obligation promissory notes gﬂ%
12/18/14 2.0%-25%  3/1/15-24 31 & 9/ 5,320 g@@%“‘% 655 000 *
General Obligation Notes
122117 2.5%-3.0%  3/1/19-27 311 & 9/1 1, Q,OOO 1,630,00C 4
Total Governmental Activities Debt {m . $ 8,845,000
Business-type Activity Debt s
General obligation Clean Water Fund Loan £ wﬁ
1125/12 2.48% 5!1/14 -31 51 & 11 %m. o 27,562,754 $ 20,014,693 2
General obligation Bonds
12/1814  2.0% - 3.128% 3% 34 3@%‘}9 s 1,290,000 1,125,000 ¢
Total Business-type Activities Debt ; t $24,136,683

" |ssued 63% for capital TIF purposes arn 43 7% @rﬁgenerai capital purposes, * Issued for a
sewer extension on W Ryan Rd, 2 I%(sued for w Building purposes. * Issued for general
Capital Improvement purposes %}% @E%w /

Annual principal and mtere’ﬁsf%p‘%‘i/ments;ﬁaz aturity on general obligation notes and bonds
payable are as follows; %‘%

Year ‘& . que%%fﬁentat Activities Business-type Activities
Decaﬁbgr ﬁmﬁ‘ﬁn@mai Interest Principal Interest
’ %3%3315,000 § 140,045 $ 1,269,723 § 509,746

201 9 1,405,000 88,788 1,289,629 478,371

b 2020™%% 1,325,000 62,412 1,330,272 446,251
2%? St 1,345,000 36,262 1,366,669 413,018
2 560,000 19,319 1,398,839 378,652
2023-27 1,895,000 15,900 7,520,164 1,348,326
2028-32 - - 6,794,397 374,970
2033-34 - - 160,000 5,000
Total $ 8845000 $ 362,726 $ 21,139,693 $ 3,954,334

The City's statutory debt limit and margin of indebtedness at December 31, 2017 are
$194,446 310 and $ 164,461,617, respectively. By City debt policy, the debt limit and margin of
indebtedness limit are $ 77,778,524 (40% of the limit prescribed by law) and $ 47,793,831,
respectively.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
On September 19, 2017 the Common Council adopted Resclution 2017-7289 authorizing the
issuance of $42.75 million of Note Anticipation Notes. As of December 31, 2017 — all $42.75
million of NAN authorized values are remaining to be issued.

I. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES

Governmental Activities %“33

Governmental activities net position reported on the government-wide stat era fnet position
at December 31, 2017 include the following: %‘my

Net investment in capital assets .
Land f*’% 25,072,951
Construction in process 442 805
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreCi@h Q§ 96,408,122
i ess: related long term debt outs@?@ng net
of unspent bond proceeds % ‘%é% (6,506,261)
Net investment in capital a % é} $ 115417.617
o

Business-type Activities % o
Business-type activities net @@jss on Tep ﬁ%@on the government-wide statement of net position
at December 31, 2017 mcln@ e fo!log;%q

]
g
Net investman apfta! %

Land e s % $ 888479

Othet@g it asg t“of accumulated depreciation 106,825,357

s%e#ated Id@g m debt outstanding (21,129,268}

N nvest%nt@?ﬁ?capital assets $ 86,584,568
4 ) S
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017
NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
[. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (continued)
Governmental Fund Balances

Reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2017 inciude the following:

Nonspendable fund balances

General Fund - advances 3 1@ 700
General Fund - prepaid items and inventory %848
Library Fund - prepaid items o 550
Total nonspendable fund balance 8 E% 247148
Restricted fund balances S
Debt service %W$ 735,022
Utility improvements @"jﬁg " 1,413,378
Development ' 4,166,500
TIF Districts | et 2,405,999
Donations %&S@ ﬁ“@ 150,136
Health services % Y e %%% 199,428
Library services : {% £ 4 580,430
Solid waste @ ' 393,677
Recreational services e h S 65,727
Tourism Commission %;% 4 , 211,783
Total restricted fund -.."" : ““” - $ 10,322,090
Assigned Fund balanc
General Fund - W‘?ﬁ%ses ) 3@& $ 150,565
Capital Projgeis:, ﬁ@éj
Capital puffay* .. %57 353,040
Equipmne ﬁrepsa ht* 2,311,815
@A aT%mprove;neW 3,795,493
' ment 286,266
und blances § 6,897,179
Unassigned find balances
General Fund 3 6,190,398
TIF Districts {Deficit) (183,998)
St Martin's Fair (Deficit) {34,452}
Total unassigned fund balances $ 5,971,948
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
Wisconsin Retirement System (Protective Occupation Employees only)
General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description. The WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.
WRS benefits and other plan provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsip Statutes.
Benefit terms may only be modified by the legislature. The retirement system is a“ékfﬁh%tered by
the Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF). The system provud “@yer%ge to all
eligible State of Wisconsin, local government and other public employees. A%T employees, initially
employed by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and exp | to work at least
1200 hours a year and expected to be employed for at least one year @@_m employee s date of
hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. %w

ETF issues a standalone Comprehensive Annual Financial Re@%AFR ), which can be found
at hitp://etf. wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm.

Vesting. For employees beginning part:u n on, %&j;} anuary 1, 1890, and no longer
actively empioyed on or after April 245@199 edn ice in each of five years is required
for eligibility for a retirement annuity. ‘%Ear%@’bants em;é‘ipyed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24,
1998, and prior to July 1, 2011, arg imfaed latelywvegted Participants who initially became WRS
eligible on or after July 1, 2011, m»uﬁ haveéffvé‘:ﬁe“ers of creditable service to be vested.

& 4 Wéﬁ
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
‘NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)
General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Benefits provided. Employees who retire at or after age 54 for protective occupation employees
are entitled to receive an unreduced retirement benefit. The factors influencing the benefit are:
(1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a formula factor

Final average earnings is the average of the participant's three hlghe§ ‘éarnmgs
Creditable service is the creditable current and prior service expressed 4n %Ts or decimal
eguivalents of partial years for which a participant receives earnings and makes ‘contributions as
required. The formula factor is a standard percentage based on employ@j’ent category.

Employees may retire at age 50 for protective occupation emgka~ and receive reduced
benefits. Employees terminating covered employment before b@ i g eligible for a retirement
benefit may withdraw their contributions and forfe|t all rlghts tm@ay ubsequent benefits,

The WRS also provides death and dlsabliat%@éhg S for e%géo 2ES.

Post-retirement adjustments. The Eﬂﬂﬁ*ﬁ%\ﬁee Trus nds Board may periodically adjust annuity
payments from the retirement syste ased on nual investment performance in accordance
with s. 40.27, Wis. Stat. An mcr&}ase (or d a e) in annuity payments may result when
investment gains (losses), togg he@wrfh e‘otl{e@}actuanal experience factors, create a surplus
(shortfall) in the reserves, a rmiined e system’s consulting actuary. Annuity increases
are not based on cost pf iggror otheT"@mllar factors. For Core annuities, decreases may be

applied only to prewogﬁ %? anted n%eases By law, Core annuities cannot be reduced fo an

amount below the %;t% guargnteed amount (the “floor”) set at retirement. The Core and
Variable annuity ngu ents Gra) during recent years are as follows:
g Core Fund Variable Fund
Adjustment Adjustment
3.0% 10%
6.6 0
2.1) (42)
(1.3) 22
(1.2) 11
(7.0) ()
(9.6) g
4.7 25
2.9 2
0.5 ' {5)
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {(continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)
Contributions. Required contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation in
accordance with Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The employer may not pay thetemployee

reguired contribution unless provided for by an existing collective bargaining agrect 4:?%

During the reporting period, the WRS recognized $818,075 in contributions g}omz%?e employer.

o
Pension Liabilities, Pensicn Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Rése M;urces and Deferred
inflows of Resources Related to Pensions gﬁ%
5m
Contributicn rates as of December 31, 2017 are: v%

Employee Category %%%E mployeé%Employer

%ﬁ
Protective with Social Securgg‘%% ‘%g 6.8% 12.0%

At December 31, 2017, the City reﬁ rtgydﬁa liahi %%% $692,662, for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pa@%ﬁm Hability as measured as of December 31, 2016, and the
total pension liahility used t uldte the.nst pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of Decembgrg"‘f% 315 roll@ﬁi ard fo December 31, 2016. No material changes in
assumptions or benefit *f‘ﬁ%s occurredthetiveen the actuarial valuatlon date and the measurement
date. The City’si‘p ion of ﬁe%t pension liability was based on the City’'s share of
contributions to the nsmr}& pja% ative to the contributions of all participating employers. At
December 31, %@“iﬁ trlgmgli =5~ proportion was 0.08403662%, which was an increase of
0.00129? %%" M its p%glon measured as of December 31, 2015.

For the yeag ended
which includes,

ember 31, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $1,846,838,
unts paid to WRS related to duty disability payments.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

At December 31, 2017, the City reported deferred cutflows of resources and deferred%mﬂows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources: &
%"‘“

Deferred Outﬂows fefred Inflows
of Resourcas Y, of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 2,178,363

Changes in assumptions

Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences betwee
contributions and proportionate share of ¢ Jtons %v% 69,377 18,408

Emplayer contributions subsequent to the U me%i }F& 1,074,037 -

Total g 5570586 § 2196771

Y
The $1,074,037 reported as @‘fefe d odif @&@ related to pension resulting from the City's

contributions subsequent to ?ﬁneasurﬁ nt date will be recognized as a reduction of the
pension liability in the ye d Dece‘gﬁer 31, 2018 for the City.

Other amounts rapgﬂgﬁs defe{‘i“e%%utﬂows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensmh%%\[f\be re(;og;g;' in pension expense as follows:

ﬁ&@ %ar ended December 31.

&
ﬁ;fé%@ 2018 $939,511
5 ae? 2019 939,511
{% 2020 638,907
2021 (210,133)
2022 982
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Rescurces and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016, actuar valuation

was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods Tha% d in the
measurement;

Actuarial Valuation Date: Decemﬁpe%ﬁfZO‘ls

Measurement Date of Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Actuarial Cost Method: fr
=air Market Value

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return | %‘i&% % 7.2%

‘ﬁr

v%ﬁ?ﬁ 3.2%

Asset Valuation Method:
%%

Discount Rate:

Salary Increases:

inflation s Y
SeniorityMerit _{7%" W% 0.2% - 5.6%
Mortality: %;%@ N Wﬁ Wisconsin 2012 Mortality Table
Post—ret:remem%wstmen 2.1%
Rty

* No post—refgéﬁ nt as%ﬁﬁs guaranteed. Actual adjustments are based on recognized
investmey e"tgm actuarals experience and other factors. 2.1% s the assumed annual
adjustmentbased on t&{ investment refurn assumption and the post-refirement discount rate.

Actuarial assuraipHbn€ are based upon an experience study conducted in 2015 using experience
from 2012 — 2014% The total pension liability for December 31, 2016 is based upon a roll-forward
of the lability calculated from the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation.

Long-term expected return on plan assets. The long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pansion Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each m@Jor asset

class are summarized in the following table: %Qﬁ
Long-Termss,
Destination Expected % Long-Term
Current Asset Target Asset Nominal Rate'ef® Expected Real
Core Fund Asset Class Allocation % Allocation % Retutn# Rate of Return %
Global Equities 50% 45% %@gﬁ/ 5.4%
Fixed Income 24.5 37 w 4 2 1.4
inflation Sensitive Assets 15.5 %@%@ 20 .ﬁ@ ST 15
Real Estate N ' 6.5 3.6
Private Equity/Debt 9.4 6.5
Multi-Asset % 6.6 3.7
iy, Ty
Total Core Fund *«é} 120 7.4 5.0
Variable Fund Asset Class _ § 2" %ﬁ%
. 2 E é;?;ﬁ%@a
US Equities %7“ by, A 70 7.6 4.7
International Equities N 30 8.5 56
Total Variable F %ZTV %Z%%’% 100 100 7.9 5.0
PN
New Engi %on Consu "'ong Term US CPI {Inflation) Forecast: 2.75%
Asset aIIo s are maﬁ%ged within established ranges, target percentages may differ from actual monthly
allocations.

Single d:scount%'ate A single discount rate of 7.20% was used to measure the fotal pension
liability. This singlé discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan
investrments of 7.20% and a long term bond rate of 3.56%. Because of the unique structure of
WRS, the 7.20% expected rate of return implies that a dividend of approximately 2.1% will aiways
be paid. For purposes of the single discount rate, it was assumed that the dividend would always
be paid. The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that
plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined
contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments (including
expected dividends) of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qufflows of Resources and Deferred
inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) - The following
presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) caiculat@cﬁusmg the
discount rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of t&@m%% pension
liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-pe m@%g -point lower
(6.20 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20 percent) than the current f%ﬁ 3

1% Decrease to Current Dlsgg%t 1% Increase to

Discount Rate Ra@%_;w Discount Rate
(6.20%) (7Eﬁ’;e:v}'??ff‘)'f (8.20%)
City's proportionate share of the net mgwg
pension liability (asset) $ %%12 418 ‘éf“;% 692,662 % (5,790,931
; £ S :
%‘? Bt position is available in separately

Detailed information about the pension g %g idugiar
issued financial statements avallabie%a h p//iee;as

number 15-11. ;
W f‘x
Payables to the pension plan fﬂ;@ﬁ Caty@ rgﬁﬁﬁed payables to the WRS of $131,664 as of
December 31, 2017, of which484,0 was. as-the&*City’s share.
gmg
City of Franklin {){Eﬂed BengfiﬁRetlrement Income Plan

isconsin.gov/lab/ and reference report

General Inform %a%out thef&emgﬁsmn Plan

Plan Descnptgp v-The Cify ,523%0 a participant in the City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement
income Riah, ‘a smgle enagl%yer defined benefit pension plan covering eligible public works
employeesy The asseﬁs of this Plan are administered by Principal Life Insurance Company. An
annual ﬂnancnalﬁp@r@nay be obtained by writing {o the plan administrator at Principal Financial
Group, P.O. Bd%%eé% Des Moines, |A 50306-9396.

Vesting -~ Participants with five years of credible service are 50% vested in the plan. Upon
reaching 10 years of credible service participants are fully vested in the plan.

Benefits provided — The City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan provides
retirement benefits to former bargaining employees of the City that are not covered under
© Wisconsin State Pension Plan (Wisconsin Refirement System), or who are regular part-time
employees as defined by Civil Service and who have a minimum of 6 months of service.
Employees who retire at or after age 60 are entitled to receive an unreduced retirement benefit.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEF!IT PENSION PLANS (continued)
City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

The factors influencing the benefit are: (1) average compensation at retirement, (2) years of
creditable service, and (3) a formula factor. %

%
Average compensation at retirement is the average of the participant's three hj E;e&j%f%seoutrve
years' earnings out of the ten latest years prior to retirement. Creditable segwé?s«the creditable
current and prior service expressed in years or fractional partial years fo h a participant
receives earnings. The formula factor is a standard percentage based Q‘ﬁf;t{ge plan provisions.
L

Employees may retire at age 55, with a minimum of 10 completeg of service and receive
reduced benefits. Employees terminating covered employme%&b 're becoming eligible for a
retirement benefit may receive either normal retirement ben@s{gﬁa‘f normal retirement date, or a
lump-sum cash payment of participant’s vest§ %ﬁcumulat

The plan also provides death and dtig*bg? béneﬁt sfﬁ“ ‘;:E%yees

Participating employees - Member%zi the p s of date of study consisted of the following

classes of participants: ?%@%
w
A, g%

Active employe 31
Terminated yés ed partlcgﬁg 6
Retirees wﬁ% 22

Total%(g} QL} 59

Contrtbutlo s@%%?g‘)tnbuﬁ‘ m%qu;rements are established through action of the City Council and
may be ndled on réugh city ordinance. Employees make a non-elective and non-
dtscretuon%pensn ig%ntributlon that is equal to 8.2% of their payroll. The City contributes all
remaining amo%ﬁts ecessary to fund the pension plan. During the reporting period, contributions
of $302,518 wer’%rpade by the City to the plan.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferréd OQutflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Rescurces Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2017, the City reported a liability of $2,377,179 for its net pension lability. The
net pension hiability was measured as of December 31, 2016, and the total pension liability used
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31,
2016. No material changes in assumptions or benefit terms occurred between the actuarial
valuation date and the measurement date.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS {continued)

City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement income Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Current year changes in the net pension liability were as follows: %

Total Increase (Decrease) %ﬁ%}s
Pension Flan Fiduciary gi?}f’énsion

Liability Net Position "¢ Liability
(a) {b) éii;ﬁ {a) - (b}
4 B
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 8364462 § ?@% -'j57 $ 1,471,705
Changes for the year: @Mg
Service cost é@f—t,BBg . f@% ’ - 154 889
Interest TR A - 606,747
Difference between expected N %;}ﬁ
and actual experience i %, 425,99 - 425,998
Changes of assumptions @ 709 %23*% - 709,323
Coniributions - employer 302,518 {302,518)
Net investment income %% 408,272 (409,272)
Benefit payments {%’ 3 ﬁ"“’(%a‘g‘é; 465) (296,465) -
Administrative Expense,%%“ (20,307) 20,307

wﬁ
Balance at Dec@’;ﬁ%1 201%%3% 9,964,954 § 7587775 § 2377179

At December 332017, the, Gifi reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resource;ﬁgg _Jt) pené;gpn%,f om the following sources;
~ St Deferred Deferred
‘@% Outfiows of inflows of
& i} Resources Resources
Differences bétween expecied and actual experience $ 488362 § 214177
Changes in assumptions 596,342 -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings -
on pension plan investments 473,050 -
Employer contributions subsequent to measurement date 983,537 -
Total § 2541201 ¢ 214177
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

The $983,537 reported as deferred oufflows related to pension resulting from dhe City's
confributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reducﬁg“h%f the net
pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2018. Other amounts repo em sédeferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension § @lll%e%recog nized in
pension expense as follows:

Year Ended December 31: (_‘W;

2016 $ 5@5%%

2017 452/989
2018 %%@ %%6,234
2019 ;r% 22,024

Actuarial assumptions - The pensmrﬂha& in the D@cember 31, 2016 actuarial valuation was
determined use the following actuagial assumptn%aiapphed to all penods in the measurement:

P B
Actuarial VValuation Date: ; %@. & %&E December 31, 2015
Measurement Date of Ne g;%%on Llab%@}?(Asset) December 31, 2016
Actuarial Cost I\;‘Iethocj@ﬁ &, Entry Age
Asset Valuation Me{%h@@ ? Market Value

?’

Long-Term Expeg ¢ Mate f e 'F%ﬁ: 7.00%

Discount Rateffﬁ@ 6.54%

Salary in NGreaRe S Infatidn %75 2.00%

Salary tﬁ‘t%gase Sem@rlty erit: 3.00%

Mortality: ™ {%{% % 2016 IRS Prescribed Mortality - Optional
{{ Combined Table for Small Plans

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2014 using historical
experience. The total pension liability for December 31, 2016 is based upon the liabiiity
calculated from the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS {continued)
City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement income Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets - The long-term expected rate of return en pension
plan investments was determined using the weighted average rate based on the fafget asset
allocation and the Long-Term Capital Market Assumptions. These ranges, : fm%gom ined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected futufe réafrates of return
by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. *Tzzm arget allocation
and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asse¢f.glass are summarized
in the following table; @ﬁ -
&

Long-Term Real @gﬁ

Asset Class Rateé@ég;?tu'm L Target Allocation
US Equity - Large Cap “%&%’% 40.36%
US Equity - Mid Cap 10% @ 4.80%
US Equity - Small Cap %, 8.55% %y 2.43%
Non-US Equity W 8.1 % " 12.47%
Core Bonds %é}& ) (3% 35.88%
High Yield 4. <B.20% 4.00%

Discount rate - A discoyn rate of 6. Sfo was used to measure the total pension liability. This
single discount rate WBS%;EB ed on+h&.expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
7.00% and a longsedmpond rat%of%”OQ% The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate as%%@ hat Ié;aﬁgﬁ"" mber contributions will be made at the current contribution
rate and that ooty fons will be made at rates equal to the difference between
actuana]x@ ‘%"f ned cohlripution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the
pension ;ﬁi iduciagy net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payr e:fé: frent plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on

pension plan i ._estmeﬁts was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pensiongbility.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred
inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate — The following prfesents the
City’s net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.54%, as well as Whatihe City’s
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that isg_#p;ﬁ%@?ﬁt‘%ge-point
lower (5.54%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.54%}) than the current rate: § ™ %
1% Decrease to Current Discou%ﬁ% 1% Increase to
Discount Rate Discount Rate

{5.54%) {7.54%)
City's net pension liability $ 3,500,724 § 1,418,719

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the,

B. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN@‘%
. .

ity of
ity of Fran
rin%g:‘%i_ife Insurance Company.

& - fM~ M;g
Employees after complgtifg six m n”ﬁ{iﬁf service with the City are eligible to participate. The
Plan requires the i%{%% ake p@ﬁogﬁcontributions to each participant’s account equal to 10%
of such participan s%gnua[ £oF ensation. Employees are required to make contributions of 5%
of wages. A parfigipafit's acgrie enefit for City contributions is 100% vested and non-forfeitable
upon deat‘gﬁgﬁ“ al retiréine f‘%arly retirement or permanent and total disability as defined in the
Plan. If efnpk ?ment is ferminated for any other reason, each participant's accrued benefit vests
o

works employees) participate ingt

Based on City ordinances all elig%%z
Plan assets are administerecggigﬁn P

g

at various percentageszbased on years of service. During 2017, total contributions of $414,676
or 10% of oove&é‘“‘d ) | were made, The City contributed $202,272 and employees $202,272.
The City may make amendments to the Plan.
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CiTY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
C. POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS
General Information About the OPEB Plan

Plan administration and description. The City administers the City of Frankiin Post-
Employment Benefits Trust (City OPEB Plan), a single-employer defined benefit OPEB
plan that is used to provide post-employment health care benefits for all eligible full-time
employees of the City. Management of the City OPEB Plan is vested in the City’s Common
Council. Separate financial statements are not prepared for the City OPEB %@aa

Benefits provided. City of Franklin eligible full time employees meetmg"“ﬁﬁ%ﬁmum age and
service requirements may receive group health care benefits at a reduced C% d@uring the period
from their normal retirement date until they reach age 65. This results in apether post-employment
benefit (OPEB) obligation for those groups. These groups common!y:gg# igher medical costs
than anticipated in the blended premium rates. That differential tng;e {rred to as an implicit rate

subsidy.
Employees covered by benefit terms. e 17, the following employees
were covered by the benefit terms: %
Active employees 179
Inactive employees entlti by no szxyet Féce|v1ng benefits -
Retirees receiving bem its e »@% 24
E 203

Total gﬁk%
- PO . .
Contributions. Contribfition requ&(%ﬁjﬁnts are established by either City ordinance or
coliective bargaining™ahd may%bé amended only by the groups establishing the

requirements. kh@;:gmys perlc%d@ contribution is determined and fixed at the time of
retirement. The | e paﬁ;@&ﬁ} balance of the periodic blended premium. The eligibility

for the benefit{s ” ws: & %
AN
a%mployee Gz;cup # City Amount Age Years Service
S

Non;‘fg Bgented 34 75% of Premium at Retirement 62 20

%c& 72  75% of Premium at Retirement 53 15

Dispatch 14 75% of 2005 Premium 62 20

Fire 54  75% of Premium at Retirement 53 20

DPW 28 75% of Premium at Retirement 60 15
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
C. POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)
Investments

Investment policy. The City is authorized to invest funds of the City OPEB Plan in
accordance with the City’s investment policy for the City OPEB Plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determinegd using a
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of retf jiexpected
returns, net of OPEB pian investment expense and inflation) are develope m*ea h major
assef class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term ex ate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the targef %set aliocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocatlomﬁg{d best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major assef class are sur@‘;&rﬂed in the following

table: %

sLong-Term
Q{% Expected
%; Tar . Real Rate of
Asset Class g%%* ;};@%’z% Return

Domestic equity (maxiffudm) %, " 75% 10.0%
Domestic eqwty fmigimum) g;;:%ug 25 10.0
Fixed income | %mﬁ’ﬁm) 50 2.5
Fixed lnco fmmur@)z 25 2.5

Concentratlons A %F" pla @9&2@(5 have been invested in bonds and equity securities.
See Note 3.A f% gjtional mfd”*raﬁatlon

investm ense '17 was 13.6%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses
investme tusperfor(&ge net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts

actually mvestg%}

Rate of r § ,#“The %t money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
C. POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)
Net OPEB Liability

The City's net OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the fotal OPER
liability used to calculate the net OPERB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPER liability in the December 31, 2§ %ﬁ?ctuarial
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, apphegﬁo [Eperiods
included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Salary increases 2.00 percent, averag%ﬁﬁtagctudmg inflation

6.50 percent, ne;wgiﬁcC?PEB pian investment
Investment rate of return expense, ;ncl?@@nﬂatlon

#%¢-2.5% for @as 7.0% for 2019, 6.5% for
%20 ang023, 6.0% for 2022 and 2023 and
Healthcare cost trend rates ﬁfnﬁ Sé;afg@w 24 and thereafter
Mortality rates were based on a b%z& f the Death-In-Service and Retired Lives morality
rates frem the "Wisconsin Rettremeﬁ? System 2012 — 2014 Experience Study” with the
MP-2015 generational lmprov@m%t scale@ﬁmphed by 50%).

The actuarial assumptlo a@?éd in %ﬁ%cember 31, 2017 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarlarfe%pe“hence y for the period January 1, 2012 — December 31,
2014.

wﬁ

Discount rate,m%we%ﬁlscounﬁfﬁ% used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.5 percent.
The pro;ect@n%gi casii ﬂqgfs used to determine the discount rate assumed that City
contnbu%oris will be %@ﬁ‘at rates equal to the actuarially determined confribution rates
over the ﬁ%xt 40 y ‘rﬁ This rate is a blend of expected earnings on Plan assets and the
current yield fng Q%Er tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AAJAT Sbr igher. The discount rate used for the December 31, 2017 valuation
was reduced 0.25% from the previous valuation.

Page 84




CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
C. POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Total Increase {Decrease) Net
COPEB Plan Fiduciary GPEB
Liability Net Position Liability
(@) (b) (@) - (b)
B, %:ia
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 7,312,825 $ 4,970 556:{} ;%42 269
Changes for the year: t%ﬁ
Service cost 223,719 ﬁ;r% - 223,719
interest 489,875 - 489,875
Contributions - employer - ﬁ 422 684 (422,684)
Net investment income éf:?’;“@’ﬁ 323,086 (323,086}
Benefit payments _@Q {418, 905) m (418,905) -
Estimated Balance at December 31, 2017 %2&607 514 %% 5,297,421 $ 2,310,083

Difference between estimated and & e %;(‘%
e,

actual Plan Fiduciary Net Position g 276,342 (276,342)
%QE %
Actual Balance at December 31, 201"* 'ﬁ;ﬁ@? 514 $ 5,573,763 $ 2,033,751
:P@ﬁ
% * 4
Plan fiduciary net position as ?}rcantage;{gﬁ%e total OPEB lability 73.27%
» , Eo

Sensitivity of the n%ﬁ B nag;m*' to changes in the discount rate and healthcare
cost trend rates, Tfie fGllowing/Brégents the net OPEB liability of the City, as well as what
the City's net OﬁE Llablltj.y #omd be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage- po@t we%é»ﬁ%ge cent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.5 percent) than the
current dlsg;@%anwate % 4

« £ :
= e 1% Decrease to  Current Discount 1% Increase to
f @ Discount Rate Raie Discount Rate
ﬁ{ (5.5%) (6.5%) (7.5%)
City's net OPEB liability $ 3,026,996 % 2,310,094 3% 1,664,690
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (coniinued)
C. POST-EMPLOYWMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS {continued)
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (continued)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rafes.
The following presents the net OPEB lability of the City, as well as what the City's net
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-
percentage-point lower (6.0 percent decreasing to 4.5 percent) or 1-perceniage-point
higher (8.0 percent decreasing to 6.5 percent) than the current healthcare co$trend rates:

Healthcare Cost ‘%%ﬁ%

1% Decrease to Trend Rates 1% Ingregse to
(6.0% Decreasing (7.0% Decreasing (848% Decreasing
to 4.5%) to 5.5%) ﬂ%ﬁ 8.5%)
City's net OPEB liability $ 1,722,862 § 2,310, 094 ﬁﬁ% 2,974,885
L9

éﬁm‘%
ourceé%ﬁd Deferred Inflows of Resources

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows R
Related to OPEB _:_:;?

For the year ended December 31% 17, the C|§ecogmzed negative OPEB expense of
$308,518. At December 31, 2Q17%the City did not report any deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of sourcesﬁ‘ ated to OPEB.

Payable to the OPEB flﬁ%’% PR
U, W
At December 31 201@ zt]"e City é§ “hot report a payable for any outstanding amount of
contributions to th&{éﬁgy OPEB% reguired for the year ended December 31, 2017.
%

D. CONTI?@C‘}ES Aé};dU“C@MﬁlTMENTS

The Cltyaﬁ%s is pagy tc‘i’«‘stialms and legal proceedings. Although the outcome of such matters
in not preséntly det l’rgable it is the opinion of City management and the City attorney that the
likelihood is regdo f any such claims or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on
the City's ﬂnancf{}oosition.

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the
grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. Management believes such
disatlowances, if any, wouid be immatenal.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

The City has encumbered approximately $1.3 million at year end due to valid contacts or purchase
orders in place and the related services committed and not yet received.

The City receives impact fees for new development projects. The fees are to be used to fund
specific projects within a specific period of time. In the event the projects are not completed or the
time pericd elapses, the City will be required to refund the impact fees to the current owners of
properties that the fees were originally collected. w}é

grants and aids from other units of government, user fees, fines an its and other
miscellaneous revenue. The State of Wisconsin provides a variety of aid anc t programs that
henefit the City. Those aid and grant programs are dependent on contln pproval and funding
by the Wisconsin governor and legislature, through their budget proc ny changes made by
the State to funding or eligibility of local aid programs could haveéﬁﬂa nlflcant impact on future
operating results of the City. €% "3“

E. RISK MANAGEMENT &% %ﬁ?}

The City is exposed {o various rtsks ﬁ%ﬁéd t%gizts‘* theft, damage or destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, natural dlsast worke ompensation claims that the City carries
commercial insurance. No 5|gn;ﬁcant r@é”ucttonﬁ‘n winsurance coverage occurred for any risk of
loss in the past year, and settieg %ms hgvgg wexceeded commercial coverage in any of the
past three fiscal years. o

Funding for the operating budget of the City comes from many sources, inc } reperty taxes,
d

The City also offers a gro ‘g}mal agmdentai insurance plan to empioyees for which the City
is self-insured. This a wuws acce IRt ﬂffor in the City's Self Insurance internal Service Fund.
Group medical angd tst Qf“costs targed to City departments and retirees participating in the
program. A thir aﬁy ad:;u rtor handles claims payments. The City carries stop loss
insurance for clé” 60,000 per year per individual and $75,000 per year per group.
Liabilities arev E% is probable that claims have occurred and the amount of the claim
can be rég s bly es%nat . Liabilities include an estimated amount for claims that have been
incurred bu%no%éjﬁfﬁ ("IBNR"
i

Changes in the t @@ance of claims payable for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are

as follows:
Balance Current Claims Balance
Fiscal Beginning of and Changes Claims End of
Year Year in Estimates Payments Year
2017 3 270500 $ 3,944,740 % 3,924549 % 290,700
20186 270,500 3,802,461 3,802,461 270,500
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER [NFORMATION (continued)
F. RESTATEMENT

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 75 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. This standard was implemented January
1, 2017. As a result, beginning net position has been restated as follows: Governmental
Activities — ($2,296,828), Business-type Activities — ($45,440), Water Utility — ($22,720)
and Sewer Utility — ($22,720).

%
G. EFFECT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ON CURRENT PERIOD FINANCIAL ST =MENTS

3
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has approved the gmmm?&*

wﬁ*”“
o« Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations @&@
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities e j&;@w
Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017 o g

Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment [ssues %ij%
Statement No. 87, Leases g}

When they become effective, apphcaﬂon %e staﬁg;((% may restate portions of these
financial statements. g}%
% A

H. SUBSEQUENT EVENT \ %j ;&’%
On April 17, 2018 the City lssueétaﬁble gég% obllgatmn note anticipation notes in the amount

of $23,480,000 with interest ré Bt 7. 50%.antt 3.20%. The notes ae being used to finance project
cost related to the City’s T%fiﬁ remengg stnct #5.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) -
WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Proportionate
Share of the Net Pian Fiduciary
WRS Proportion Proportionate Pension Liability Net Position
Fiscal of the Net Share of the (Asset) as a as a Percentage
Year Ending Pension Net Pension Covered Percentage of of the Total
Date Asset Liability (Asset) Payroll Covered Payroll  Pension Liability
12131114 0.084116700% $ (2,065,567) $ 8,071,472 25.59%

12/3115 0.082739220% 1,344,496 8,459,850 15.89%
12/31/18 £.084036620% 692,662 8,682,689 7.98%

Contributions

City Relation to, Contributions
Fiscal Contractually as a Percentage
Year Ending Required Covered of Covered
Date Contributions Payrofl - Payrotl
12/31/15 3 $ 8,459,850 8.15%
1213116 8,682,689 10.01%
1213117 8,950,304 12.00%

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes
to reguired supplementary information.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Total Pension Liability
Service Cost
Interest on the Total Pension Liability

Difference between Expected and Actual Experience 527,384

Assumption Changes

Benefit Payments
Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pension Liability - Beginning

Total Pension Liability - Ending

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer Contributions
Pension Plan Net investment Income
Benefit Payments
Pension Plan Administrative Expense

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Positio

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning™

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending,

Nef Pension Liability (Asset) E
Plan Fiduciary Net Position ag:
Covered Payroll

Net Pension Li

Fiscal Year Ending
2015 2018 2017

$ 165,130 $ 180,074 $ 154,889

531,850 603,514 808,747
(460,357) 425,998
213,402 12,332 709,323
(191,375) _ (239:861). _ (296,465)
1,246,391 702 1,600,492
7,022,369 ¢ 8,268,760 _ 8,364,462

.. $8,364,462 $9.964 054

339,027 302,518
(41,577) 409,272
191,375)  (239,861)  (296,465)
(27,941) (22,802) (20,307)
452 158 35,687 395,018
6,704,912 7,157,070 7,192 757

$7,157,070 37,192,757 $7,587,775

$1,111,690 $1,171,705 $2,377,179
al Pension Liability 87% 86% 76%

$1,792,628 $1,876,995 $1,876,995

ity a5 a Percéntagé of Covered Payroll 62% 62% 127%

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes
io required supplementary information.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Fiscal Actuarially Contribution Actuat Contribution
Year Ending Determined Actual Deficiency Covered as a Percentage of
Date Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
12/31156 3 293832 $ 293,832 3 - % 1,792,628
12/3116 336,927 339,927 - 1,876,995

12/31/17 302,518 302,518 - 1,853,074

See independent auditors' repert and accompanying notes
to required supplementary information.

Page 91




CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
OPEB PLAN
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Fiscal Year Ending

2017
Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost 5 223,719
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 489 875
Benefit Payments (418,908)

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning

Total OPEB Liability - Ending -

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

7:607.514

Employer Contributions 422,684
Employee Contributions 91,969
OPEB Ptan Net investment income 673,624
Benefit Payments h (500,350)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Positi 687,927
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginnin 4. 885 836
Plan Fiduciary Net Position -£ndin 5,573,763
Net OPEB Liability Ending $ 2,033,751
Plan Fiduciary Net Positior age &f Total OPEB Liability 73%
Covered Payroll 5 13,879,896
Net OPEB Liabil gé of Covered Payroll 15%

See indepehdent auditors' report and accompanying notes
to required supplementary information,
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
OPEB PLAN
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Actuarially Determined Contribution
Actual Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)
Covered Payroll

Actual Contribution as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

Fiscal Year Ending
2017

13,879,806

3%

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes

to required supplementary information.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 — PRESENTATION

The City is required to present the last ten years of data on each schedule; however, the standards
allow the City to present as many years as are available until ten years are presented.

NOTE 2 — WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The data presented in the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)
for the Wisconsin Retirement System was taken from the reports issued by the %VISCOIISIH

Reti i System.
etirement Sy fm%

Changes of benefit terms. There were no changes of benefit terms for any pgmrtl%%atmg employer
in WRS. :

oy

Changes of assumptions. There were no changes in the assumptlong;f?n o

NOTE 3 — CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT |NCOM§‘§CEAN

K‘W
The data presented in the Schedule of Chan@e@g@g Net Pensies §L|ab;ilty and Related Ratios and
Schedule of Contributions for the City of F in Deﬂngi%e +fit Retirement Income Plan was
taken from the reports issued by the ac:tu 4 3_; '

Changes of benefit ferms. There w %gii:?nhang%@g benefit terms for any participating employer
in WRS.

7

N
Changes of assumpfions. Th‘?’eﬁere n%h ges in the assumptions.
NOTE 4 — OPEB PLANQ% %Q}W

‘%
The data presen‘f‘e «the Sclggamg of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios and
the Schedule of Bo fribui ﬁigf‘gthe City of Frankiin Post Employment Benefit Trust was taken

from the%gﬁ% s’%ued b %&é actuary.

Changes o ﬁ)e%?ﬂt éeﬁﬁs There were no changes of benefit terms for any participating employer
in WRS,

Changes of assumptions. The discount rate was reduced from 6.76% used in the previous
actuarial study to 6.50% used in the current study.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
debt service or major capital projects) that are restricted for specified purposes.
Library Operating Fund — This fund accounts for the budgetary operation of the Library.
Library Auxiliary Fund — This fund accounts for Library donations, fines and forfeitures.
Solid Waste Collection Fund — This fund accounts for solid waste collection activities.
Donation Fund — This fund accounts for donations received for specific purposes.

8t Martin's Fair Fund — This fund accounts for activities related to the farmers/flea
market held the first Monday of the spring and summer months and the Labor Day
weekend. f%wf%

Civic Celebrations Fund — This fund accounts for activity related to the %ff?%% Fourth of
July and other celebrations.

Tourism Commission — The State mandated that certain portions of ’fﬁ’*‘fég Hotel Tax be
dedicated for tourism promotlon The Common Council formed aqﬂjgur;sm Commission

which determines how those funds are spent. PR

- 2o
Grant Fund — The City reports its grant activities in this ;uarﬁ:? Grant activities include
Fire Department, Police Department, Health Department, amunity Development Block

Grants and miscellaneous grants receli,gd by the j@i% that are not accounted for
elsewhere.

Capitéi 0]ec 4? ds

Capital Projects Funds account {or ﬁ}anma?&% ources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital fﬁ%ﬂ%es gft;mn those financed by Proprietary Funds).

Capital Qutlay Fund ~ Thfgg%nd accéW % for the departmental capital outlays. These
expenditures are fund%d;ﬁ*y@%e ta @ev?’” normally are less than $25,000 and are under
the direction of the depgsfment su%e;ﬁ?sor

Equipment Repjﬁ “éﬁ%ént Fu e%%This fund accounts for the rolling stock replacement
program that g‘h@nulatesﬁaﬁhual funding (from property taxes) for replacement of
vehlcies an ﬂ;;ﬂar eqiipl mént in lieu of using borrowed monies.

Caprtal 'ements — This fund accounts for land acquisitions, building projects
and all p%blic woﬁ( %prOJects and are usually funded with landfill siting revenues,
borrowed moné;ﬁ ~#inding from some other source other than the tax levy.

Street Improve?ﬁent Fund — This fund accounts for the activities of the local road
improvement program. Funding is provided by the tax levy and an every other year local
road improvement grant from the State, and landfill siting revenues.

Utility Improvement Fund — This fund is used to account for water and sewer connection
fees and special assessments that are used for water and sewer construction projects.

Development Fund - This fund is used to account for impact fees restricted for use to
capital improvements.




ASSETS

Cash and investmenis
Receivables

Accounts

Taxes

Special assessmeants
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
Long-term advances

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabiiiies
Due o other funds

Totat liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unearned & unavailable
revenue

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items
Resiricted:
Utilty improvements
Development
Donations
Health services
Library services
Solid waste
Recreational services
Tourism Commission
Assigned:
Capitat projects
Unassigned (deficit)
Total fund balances

CITY OF FRARKLIN, WiISCONSIN
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
As of December 31, 2017

Spesial Revenue Funds

Schedule 1

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and

fund balances

Library Library Solid Waste St Martin's Civig Tourism
Operating Auxiliary Collection Fair Denatien Celebrations ~ Commission Grapt
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 400335 § 134,081 § 8633415 § 2100 & 152240 § 65727 § 1274726 146243 $ 1,561,847
- - 27120 - - 12,006 123,283
1,303,200 - 1,208,260 - - - - 2,511,469
88,601 - - - - - 56,265 144,866
- 650 - - - - - 650
$ 1782136 § 134711 § 1.768804 § % 211,763 § 214804 § 4342115
$ 16,284 § 2,506 166,483 3 - 3 13980 % 201,337
22,352 1,425 - 1,216 25,423
- - - - 36,562
38,636 3,921 - 15,176 263,312
1,303,200 - - - - - 2,511,414
. - - - 650
150,136 - - - 150,136
- - - 195,428 199,428
- - - - 580,430
- - - - 393,677
- 85,727 - - 65,727
- - - - - 241,793 - 211,793
- - (34,452} - - - - {34,452)
130,780 383,877 (34,462} 160,136 65,727 211,793 190,428 1,567,389
$ 1702136 § 134,711 § 1768804 3 2,100 § 182240 § 866727 % 211,793 $ 214604 $ 4342115
{Continugd}
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Schedule 1

concluded}
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
As of December 31, 2017
Capital Projects Funds Total
Capital Equipment Capital Street Utility Nonmajor
Outlay Replacement  Improvement  Improvement improvement Development Governmentat
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Funds
ASSETS
Cash and inveslments $ 361,348 § 2,312,040 § 3BBOG54 $ 286266 § 1,259,706 § 4,221 282§ 12,301,247 $ 13,863,094
Receivables i
Accounts - - 78,480 - - 78,490 201,773
Taxes 450,500 350,000 - 714,700 163,672 1,668,872 4,180,341
Special assessments - - - - 755,92 755,921 755,921
Due from other governments - - - - - 144,866
Prepaid items - - - - - - - 650
Long-erm advances - - - - ) 25,000 25,000 25,000
Total assets $ B11,848 § 28562040 $ 3930144 § 1,000,966 § 2160298 § 424652082 § 14829530 §  15,171645

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable % 8309 & 225 % - $ 76732 % 141,917 % 343,254
Accrued Fabilities - - - - 0,000 115,423
Due 16 other funds - - - - 36,582
Totat liabijities 8,309 - 79,732 231,817 495,229
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESDURCES
Unearned & unavaiiable revenus 450 500 714,700 755,921 - 2271124 4,782 535
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepald items - - - - 550
Restricted.
Utility improvements - 1,413,378 - 1,413 378 1,413,378
Development - - 4,166,500 4,168,500 4,166,500
Donations - - - - 180,136
Health services - - - - 199,428
Library services - - - - 580,430
Solid wasle - - - - 393,677
Recreational services - - - - 65,727
Tourism Commissian - - - - - 211,793
Assignect =
Capital projects 353,040 2,311,815 3,795,483 286,266 - - 6,746,614 6,746,614
Unassigned (deficit) S - - - - - s - (34,452)
Total fund balances 353,040 2,311,815 3,795,493 286,265 1,413,378 4,166,500 12,326,492 13,893,881
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and
fund balances $ 811,840 § 2682040 § 3939144 § 10000966 $ 2189299 § 4246232 § 14,829,530 § 18,171,645
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REVENUE
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Public charges for services
Licenses apd permits
Special assessments
Investment eamings
Miscellaneous revenue

Totat revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety

Publiic works

Health ang human services

Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue

over expenditures

OTHER FINANGING SOURCES {USES)

Sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out

General obligation debt issued
Total other financing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances (deficit) - beginning

Fund balances (deficit) - ending

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCORNSIN
Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Fer the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Special Revenue Funds

Schedule 2

Library Library Solid St Martin's Civie Tourism
Operating Auxiliary Waste Fair Donation Celebrations Commission Grant

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$1,296,600 §$ - 8 - % - % 211,783 § - $1,508,393
88,601 - 68,838 - - 224,564 382,003
- 8,906 1,661,305 - - - 1,684,466
- - - 25,285 - - 25,885
7,081 100 8,011 - - - 15,192
- 59,211 35 450 - 8.745 145,895
1,392,282 68,217 1,638,189 25,735 140,683 211,793 233,309 3,761,834
- - - 5,000 36,101
- - - - - 1,575,395
- 588 - - 181,978 182,568
1,215,212 2,104 136,352 - - 1,451,667
98,141 45,020 - - 8,474 168,078
1,313,353 78,813 136,362 - 195 452 3,413,808
78,928 (26,982) _ (27,187) 4,341 211,793 37,857 348,026
11,000 - 13,000 - - 24,000
11,000 - 13,000 - - 24,000
6,491 62,794 (15,982)  (27.197) 17,341 211,793 37,857 372,026
124,289 330,883 (18,470) 177,333 48,386 - 161,571 1,195,363
$ 130,780 § 393,677 § (34,452) $150,136 § 65,727 § 211,793 §$ 199,428 § 1,567,389
{Continued)
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REVENUE
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Public charges for services
Licenses and permits
Special assessments
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous revenue

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Culture and recreation

Capital outlay

Debt service - debt issuance costs
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency} of revenue
over expenditures

OTHER FINANGCING SOURCES (USES)

Sale of capital assets
Transfers in

Transfers out

General obligation debt issueqd

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund baiances
Fund balances (deficit} - beginning

Fund balances (deficit) - ending

Schedule 2
(concluded}
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expendititres and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Capital Projects Funds Total
Capital Equipment Capital Street Utility Nonmajor
Outlay Replacement Improvement improvement Improvement Development Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Fupds

$ 444300 § 348300 % - & 704,800 % - % 1497500 § 3,005,863
7,849 - - - - 7.B49 389,852
148,000 200,000 370,758 133,000 - 851,758 2,536,224

- - - - - - 25,885

- - - - 281,413 424 950 424,950

4,432 19,015 22 955 8,250 40,848 139,154 154,343
401 750 - - - 1,151 147,046
604,982 568,065 393,713 844,150 322,261 2,822 359 6,684 183
- - - - 38,101

- - - - 1,575,385

- - - - 182,566

- - - - - 1,451,667

650,726 815,212 - 98,665 3,724,248 3,382,327

- - - - 40442 40,442

650,726 815,212 - 99,6685 3,264,690 6,675,498
(45,744, (648,920} 28,938 189,188 222 596 (342,331) 5,695
97,480 - - - 179,355 179,355

661 - - - 33,759 57,799
- - - (114,658) {141,608) {141,808)

1,630,000 - - - 1,630,000 1,630,000

28,201 1,728,141 - - (114,658) 1,701,548 1,725,546

(59,188} 1,078,224 28,938 189,188 107,638 1,359,215 1,731,244

338,922 2,371,003 2,747,272 257,328 1,224 190 4,058,562 10,967,277 12,162,640
$ 353040 F 2311815 § 3795468 § 286266 § 1,413,378 § 4,166,500 $12326492 § 13,853,881
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

General Fund

Schedule 3

Schedule of Revenues and Transfers In - Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

TAXES
General propeity taxes
Water Utility - tax eguivalent
Cable TV franchise fees
Hotel/Room Tax
Mobile home assessments

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
State shared revenue
State expenditure restraint revenue
Fire insurance - dues
Local, state and federal grants and aids
Computer aid
Transportation aids
Other

LICENSES, FEES AND PERMITS
Licenses:
Beer and liguor
Bartenders
Amusement and related
Peddlers
Food and related
Dog and cat
Health
Other
Permits:
Building
Electrical
Plumbing
Sign
Park
Fire
Other

FINES, FORFEITURES AND PENALTIES

Variance with

Page 99

final budget -

Original Final Excess
Budget Budget Actual {Deficiency)
$ 16,423,500 % 16,423,500 $ 16415435 § (8,065)
1,050,000 1,050,000 1,032,843 {17,187)
530,000 530,000 482 833 {47,167)
174,358 174,358 174,358 -
22,600 22,600 20,99 {1,601)
18,200,458 18,200,458 (73,990)
482 400 482,400 20,307
207,900 207,200 207,922 22
141,500 141,500 153,400 11,800
220,600 219,437 {1,163)
1,400, 1,083,339 {6,661)
850 88,156 3,156
2,264 961 27,561
33,800 42,256 8,456
6,500 16,500 17,221 721
9,700 9,700 9,830 130
2,500 2,500 5,024 2,524
1,850 1,850 6,215 4,365
9,500 9,500 11,749 2,249
59,600 59,600 61,537 1,837
14,850 14,850 14,160 (690)
648,865 648,865 423,900 (224,965)
105,500 105,500 72,183 (33,317)
105,500 105,500 58,745 (46,755)
7,500 7,500 12,492 4,992
14,300 14,300 18,071 4,771
4,500 4,500 3,940 (560)
17,400 17,400 15,554 {1,846)
1,051,865 1,051,865 773,877 (277,988)
500,000 500,000 485,407 (14,593)
{Continued)




CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCORNSIN
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Transfers In - Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)

PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES
General government

Property reports and document fees 3

Clerk Services
Public safety
Police Department and refated
Ambulance service
Fire Department and related
Quarry reimbursement
Weights and measures
Public works
Weed cutting
Street iighting
Engineering and DPW fees
Landfill tippage fees
Health and human services

Heatlth clinics and other health fees

Conservation and development

Zoning, subdivision and other filing fees

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR~

SERVICES

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

MISCELLANEOUS REVENU
Municipal property renta
Property sales
Refunds and reimburs
Insurance divi
Other revenge

Total Revenues
Transfers from other flihds

Total Revenues and Transfers In

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Schedule 3
(concluded)

Variance with

final budget -
Original Final Excess

Budget Budget Actual {Deficiency)
13,000 % 13,000 % 13,059 $ 59
1,450 1,450 1,778 328

7,500 7,500 (476}

1,141,000 1,141,000 (86,574)

81,000 81,000 (31,307}

43,300 43,300 (300}
8,000 8,000 597

12,000 12,000 5,823 (B,177)

10,500 9,703 (797)

25,750 23,560 (2,190)

255,000 186,487 (68,513)
108,767 7,017

64,000 81,730 27,730

1,764,250 1,603,247 (161,003)

203,200 172,796 (30,404}

220,000 220,000 189,275 (30,725)
45,000 45,000 53,041 8,041

11,650 11,650 9,334 (2,318}
22,500 22,500 36,586 14,086
45,000 45,000 45,097 97
1,500 1,600 4,795 3,285
125,650 125,650 148,853 23,203

24,261,823 24,302,823 23,764,884 (537,939)
- 26,9850 26,950 -

$ 24291823 $ 24329773 % 23,791,834 $  (537,839)

Page 100




Schedule 4

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures and Transfers Out - Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance with

final budget -
Original Final Excess
Budget Budget Actual {Deficiency}
CURRENT
General Government
Mayor - Perscnnel Services $ 18,508 § 18508 $ 18,501 $ 7
Mayor - Other Services 6,350 6,350 5,206 1,144
Aldermen - Personnel Services 47,471 47,471 47,439 32
Aldermen - Other Services 24,760 24,760 22,231 2,528
Municipal court - Personnel Services 190,061 190,061 8,147
Municipal court - Other Services 47 150 74,850 4,881
City clerk - Personnel Services 302,038 316,538 16,676
City clerk - Other Services 28,000 28,000 1,449
Elections - Personnel Services 31,082 31,082 11,918
Elections - Other Services 9,600 8,600 2,660
information services - Personnel Services 11¢,720 120,220 428
information services - Other Services 363,087 31,685
Administration - Personnel Services 288,457 1,041
Administration - Other Services 138,015 85,575 52,440
Finance - Personnel Services 416,808 416,961 4 937
Finance - Other Services 96,724 95,887 857
Independent Audit 36,500 37,855 545
Assessor - Other Services 218,593 2,782
Legal counsel 324,065 13,467
Municipal buildings - Personnel Services 125,157 2
Municipal buildings - Other Services 119,215 111,428 7,787
Refunded Taxes 82,500 20,139 62,361
Property and liability insurance ; 93,575 65,454 28,121
Anticipated Underexpenditure C 455 820) (455,820) - {455,820}
Contingency 625,000 292,262 25 488 266,774
Total General Government 3,314,937 3,058,849 2,994 101 64,748
Public Safety

Police - Personnel Servic 7,265,049 7,360,549 7,355,168 5,381
Police - Other Services .- 1,145 626 1,145,436 1,062,261 83,175
1,095,593 1,095,593 1,021,564 74,029

5,679,632 5,826,632 5,818,793 7.839

473,100 473,100 404,553 68,547

fE 283,900 283,900 280,267 3,633

ihspection - Perspnnel.Services 788,275 788,275 734,075 54,200

Building ihgpection - Other Services 29,550 29,550 22,460 7,090
Sealer of weights and/Teas 7,800 7,600 7,600 -
Total Public Safety =" 16,768,325 17,010,635 _ 16,705,741 303,894

(Continued)
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

General Fund
Schedule of Expenditures and Transfers Qut - Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

CURRENT
Public Waorks
Engineering - Personnel Services
Engineering - Other Services
Highway - Personnel Services
Highway ~ Other Services
Street lighting
Weed control
Total Public Works

Health and Human Services
Public health - Persennel Services
Public health - Cther Services
Animal confrof
Total Health and Human Services

Cuiture and Recreation
Senior activities and travel program
Parks - Personnei Services
Parks - Cther Services

Total Culture and Recreation

Conservation and Development
Planning - Personnel Servicas
Pianning - Other Services
Economic development - Persenne
Economic development - Other SEmvic

Total Conservation and Development

Total Expenditures

Transfers to Oth ;

Total Expendifures and Transfers Out

Schedule 4

(cenciuded)

Variance with

final budget -
Original Final Excess

Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)
624,790 624,790 519,893 104,897
21,820 29,220 18,610 10,610
2,399,102 2,379,102 2,261,670 117,432
790,797 790,797 722,284 68,503
344,800 344,800 38,632
15,050 15,050 10,077
4,196,359 4,183,758 348,151
581,507 10,019
68,790 9,146
34,500 757
684,797 19,922
20,277 3,408

126,945 2,148

39,747 1,978

186,969 7,535

336,310 335,317 993

60,550 58,525 4,025

102,617 100,391 2,226

124,200 124,200 35,281 88,919
623,677 623,677 527,514 06,163
25,760,313 25,767,221 24,926,808 840,413
24,000 57,138 57,138 -
$25784 313 §$25824359 §240983948 § 840,413
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WiSCONSIN

Debt Service Fund

Schedule

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance with

final budget -
Original Final Excess
Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)
REVENUE
Taxes § 1,300,000 $ 1,300,000 $ 1,300,000 % -
Special assessments - - 108,779 106,778
Investment eamings - - 11,813 11,613
Total revenue 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,418,382 118,392
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal 1,355,000 1,355,000 1,355,000 -
Interest 272,463 272,463 1 44,7§6 127,727
Total expenditures 1,627 463 1,627 463 127,727
Excess_(deficiency) of revenue over (327,463) (327,463) 246,119
expendifures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 327,113 327 1% 113,997 (213,116)
Premium {discount) on debt issued - 51,071 51,071
Total ather financing sources (uses)} 27,113 165,068 (162,045)
Net change in fund balances 83,724 % 84,074
Fund balances - beginning 651,298
Fund baiances - ending 735,022
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REVENUE
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for Services
Investment eamings
Miscellaneous revenue

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Cutture and recreation
Capital outlay
Tetal expenditures

Net change in fund baiances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Schedule §
CiTY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenue, and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
for the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Library Operating Fund Library Auxiliary Fund

Variance with Variance with
Finai Budget - Final Budget -
Original Final Excess Original Excess
Budget Budget Actual - {Deficiency} Budget Actual - (Deficiency)
$ 1,296,800 $ 1,296600 § 1,206600 § - $ § - 8 -
90,000 90,000 88,601 {1,399) - -
- - - - 8,906 (694)
8,500 8,500 7,081 (1,419} L 100 .
- - - 606;050 59,211 (839)
1,385,100 1,395,100 1,392,282 {2,818} 9,750 69,750 88,217 {1,533)
1,366,871 1,385,871 1,21,_'-3 12%2 46,250 46,250 45,282 968
88,500 98,500 88,4471 23,506 23,500 16,444 7,086
1,455,371 1,464,371 <1;,:3'18,353 £9,750 69,7560 81,728 8,024
(602713 $_ (69,271 % 148,200 $ -8 - 6491 § 6,491
124,288
$ 130,780
{Continued)

Page 104




CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenue, and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual {on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Solid Waste Fund

St Martin's Fair Fund

Scheduie 8

Variance with

Variance with

Final Budget - Final Budget -
Original Final Excess Original Fiﬁ'gl Excess
Budget Budget Actual {Deficiency) Budget dget Actual  {Deficiency)
REVENUE &
Intergovemmental revenue $ 69200 $ ©89200 $ 68,838 § {362y % - % - 8 -
Public charges for services 1,549,200 1,561,200 1,561,305 105 - - -
Licenses and permits - - - - 37,400 25,285 {12,115)
investment eamings 2,500 2500 8,011 5511 - - - -
Miscellaneous revenue 500 500 35 (465} 3 600 3,600 450 (3,150
Tolal revenue 1,621,400 1,633 400 1,638,189 4,789 41,000 41,000 25,735 {15.265)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public works 1,550,216 1,877,216 - - - -
Culture and recreation - - 51,632 54,132 52,717 1,415
Total expenditures 1,550,216 1,577.216 ‘ 51,632 54,132 52,717 1,415
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue
Over (Under) Expenditures 71,184 6610 (10,632) _ (13.132) (26,082) (13,850}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 11,000 41,000 11,000 -
Net change in fund balsnces 3 6,610 $ 388 $ (2,132 (15,982) § (13,850
Fund halances (deficit) - beginning 330,883 (18,470)
Fund baiances {deficit) - ending 393,677 $ (34,452
{Continued)
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Special Revanue Funds
Schedule of Revenue, and Expenditures and Changes [n Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Donations Fund

Scheduie &

Civie Celebrations Fund

Variance with

Variance with

Final Budget - . Finat Budget -
Criginal Final Excess' . Original _Final: Excess
Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency) Budget Budget: Actual (Deficiency)
REVENUE
Licenses and permits $ - 8 - % - % - - 8 6800 § 600
Charges for services - - - - 97,000 114 258 17,256
Misceltaneous ravenue 30,825 50,825 51,616 791 20,000 25 838 5838
Toetal revenue 30,825 50,825 51,616 FE) 117,000 140,694 23,694
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public works 79,600 76,500 - - - -
Health and human services 600 600 - - - -
Culture and recreation - 2,000 108,837 128,357 136,353 (7,0186)
Capital outlay 47,750 - - - -
Total expenditures 127,950 108,837 129,337 136,353 (7.016)
Excess {deficiency) of revenue
over (under} expenditures (97,125} (11,837) {12,337) 4,341 168,678
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Trapsfers in - 13,000 13,000 12,000 -
Transfers out 1,500 - - - -
Net change in fund balances 27,197y § 73,428 1,163 % 663 17341 § 16,678
Fund balances - beginning 177,333 48,386
Fund balances - ending 3150136 $ 85727
{Gontinued)
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Schedute §
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN {Concluded}
Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenue, antt Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actuai (on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Grant Fund
Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Excess
Budget Budget Actual {Deficiency)
REVENUE
Intergovernmental revenue $ 217,500 § 237613 § 224584 § {13,049)
Miscelianecus revenue 8,500 8,500 8,745 245
Total revenue 226,000 246,113 233,309 {12,804)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Puibic safety - 5,000 5,000
Health and human services 263,374 276,237 181,878
Capital cutiay 18,500 20,750 8,474
Total expenditures 281,874 301,987 195,452

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenue

Over (Under) Expenditures (55,874) 91,481

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers oul (2,000) 2,000
Net change in fund balances $ (57,874) 3 93,481

Fund balances - beginning 161,571

Fund balances - ending 169,428
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCOMSIN
Capital Projects Funds

Schedule 7

Schedule of Revenue, and Expenditures apd Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual {on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Capital Outlay Fund

Egquipment Replacement Fund

Vartance with

Variance with

final budget - final budget -
QOriginal Final Excess Excess
Budget Budget Actual {Deficiency) Actual {Deficiency)
REVENLIE
Taxes $ 444300 § 444300 3 444300 § - 3 343,300 § 348,200 S -
Intergovemmental revenue - - 7,849 - - -
Public charges for services - Landfill siting 48,000 148,000 148,000 200,000 200,000 -
Investment eamings (loss) 6,000 6,000 4,432 25,000 19,015 (5,985)
Miscetlaneous revenue - - 401 - 750 750
Total revenue 598,300 588,300 604,982 573,300 573,300 568,085 {5.235)
=
EXPENDITURES - R
Capital cutlay 596,868 844 213 2 313,832 550,000 586,881 622,563 84,328
Total expenditures 596 868 844 213 283,832 650,000 686,881 622 563 54 328
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (98,568 280,514 (76,700} {113,581) {54,498) 58,093
QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets {4,7986) 15,000 15,000 28,201 13,201
Transfers in (3,500) - - - -
Transfers out - - - - -
Net changes in fund balances 3 282,218 § (61700} §  (98,581) (26,297) § 72,294
Adjustments to generally accepted
accounting principles basis
2016 encumbrances (78,837) (36,891)
2017 encumbrances 88,482 4,000
Fund balances - beginning 338,922 2,371,003
Fund balances - ending $ 353040 5 2311815
{Continued)
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Schedule 7

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Capital Projects Funds
Schedule of Revenue, and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Capital Improvement Fund Street Improvement Fund
Variance with % Variance with
final budget - final budget -
Original Final Excess Excess
Budget Budget Actual [Deficiency) Actual [Deficiency}
REVENUE 5 2
Taxes $ - % - % - % - $ 7045900 $ 704900 $ 704900 § -
Intergovernmental revenue - 638,000 - {638,000) . - - - -
Public charges for services - Landfil siting 388,500 389,500 370,758 (18,742) 33,000 133,000 133,000 -
Investment earnings {loss) 5,000 5,000 22,955 5,500 5,500 6,250 750
Miscellaneous revenue - 110,000 - - - - -
Total revenue 394,500 1,142 500 393,713 843,400 843,400 844 150 750
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 24,246,001 26,646,507 940,000 940,000 815,212 124,788
Cebt issuance costs 170,000 - - - -
Total expenditures 24,418,001 940,000 040,000 £15,212 124,788
Excess {deficiency) of revehue
over expenditures (24,021,501} 25,572,266 {96,600} (96,800) 28,938 125,538
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES [{USES)
Sale of capital assets . ) 0 97,480 - - - - -
Transfers in ; 561 (15,018,314) - - - -
Transfers out - 113,516 - - - -
General obligation debt issued , 8;5(}0[000 1,630,000 (8,870,000} - - - -
Net changes in fund balances L42471,068) 1626400 § 3,797,468 §__(96,600) § (96800} 28,938 § 125538
Adjustments to generally accepted
accounting principles basis
2016 encumbrances (1,145,025} -
2017 encumbrances 596 846 -
Fund balances - beginning 2,717,272 257 328
Fund balances - ending $3,785,493 § 286,266
{continued)
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Capital Projects Funds
Schedule of Revenue, and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual {on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Development Fund

Schedule 7
{conciuded

“Utility Deveiopment Fund

Variance with Variance with

final budget - final budget -
Original Final Excess Excess
Budget Budget Actual {Deficiency] Actual (Deficiency)
REVENUE
Special assessments $ 791,000 % 751,000 % 281413 &% 162,100 § 143,537 & {18,563)
investment eamings 36,618 36,618 40,848 44,400 45 651 1,251
Fotal revente 827 818 827,618 322,261 206,500 189,188 {17,312)
EXPENDITURES
General government 5,000 - - -
Capital outlay 500,000 400,335 - - .
Total expenditures 505,000 408,855 - - -
Excess of revenue over expenditures 322,818 (96,702) 206,500 189,188 {17,312)
OTHER FIKANGING SOURCES (LSES) ’
Transfers out (3,345,635 .345,835),, (114,658} 3,230,877 {800,000) - 800,000
Net changes in fund balances § (2.02301] (3.026,837): 407,938 5 3,134 275 $  {693,500) 189,188 § 562,658
Adjusiments 1o generally accepted :
accounting principles basis
2016 encumbrances (3,321) -
2017 encumbrances 3,321 -
Fund balances - beginning 4,058,562 1,224,190
Fund balances - ending $ 4 166,500 $ 1,413,378
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Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

PROPERTY TAX AGENCY FUND

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables
Taxes receivable
Accounts recejvable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other governments

Totatl liabilities

OTHER AGENCY FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounis receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Special deposits

Total liabilities

TOTAL AGENCY FU
ASSETS
Cash and.dnyéstriéents
Receivables
Taxes receivable

Accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Special deposits

Total liabilities

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Fiduciary Funds

Schedule 8

1213116 Additions Deductions 12131117
$ 56624473 $ 57711107 $ 96,318,774 58,018,806
15,012,442 122,796,688 123,812,135 13,997,006
63,846 39,453 58,871 44,428
$ 71,700,761 $ 220,547,259 § 220,187,780 72,060,240
$ 261,971 § 168,231,126 § 168,070,1; / 100,982
71,438,790 71,557,998 72078466, 71,959,258
$ 71,700,761 $ 239,789,124 $ 240,148 603 72,060,240
11,693
3,685
53,491 15,378
23,085 22,827 1,660
31,286 33646 13,718
54,341 56,473 15,378
56,633,862 97,744,372 $ 098,347,765 58,030,499
15,012,442 122,796,698 123,812,135 13,897,006
67,673 61,812 81,371 48,113
$ 71,714,007 $ 220,602,882 $ 220,241,271 72,075,618
$ 263,859 § 168,254,181 § 168,092,964 102,642
71,438,790 71,657,998 72,078,466 71,858,258
11,358 31,286 33,648 13,718
$ 71,714,007 § 239843465 § 240,205,078 72,075,618
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

TIF Districts Fund

Combining Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2017

Scheduie 9

District #3 District #4 District #5 Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments 5 1,288477 $ 2,407,183 820 $ 3,696,480
Taxes receivable 1,381,191 1,055,413 30,500 2,471,104
Total assets $ 2669668 $ 3466596 31,320 $ 6,167,584
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1,323,600 % 1,184 - $ 1,324,784
Due to other funds - - 24 695 . 24,695
Advances from Other Funds 50,000 - 75,000 125,000
Total liabilities 1,373,600 1,184 11474 479
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue 1,381,191 1,055,413 2471,104
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Restricted - 240599 - 2,405 909
Unassigned (deficit) (85,123} : (98,875) (183,998}
Total fund balances (deficit) (98,875) 2,222,001

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and
fund balances

31,320 $ 6,157,584
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Schedule 10
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
TIF Districts Fund
Combining Schedule of TIF Districts Revenue, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

District #3 Disfrict #4 District #5 Total
REVENUE
Taxes $ 1253575 $ 1,162,086 $ - $ 2,415,641
Intergovernmental revenue 458,196 15,960 - 474,156
Investment earnings (loss) 23049 18,283 - 41,332
Total revenue 1,734,820 1,196, 308 - 2,931,129
EXPENDITURES |
Current: |
General government 50,637 81,072 |
Public works - 37,378 |
Conservation and development 7,950 39,758 |
Capital outlay 1,353,609 1,353,609 |
Debt service - |
Principal 1,675,000 1,675,000
interest and fiscal charges 74,152 74,152 |
Total expenditures 3,161,348 3,240,969
Net change in fund balances (309,840) |
Fund balances {deficit) - beginning 2,531,841 |

Fund balances {deficit) - ending

$  (85123) § 2405000 $  (98875) $ 2.222.001
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Schedute 11

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
TIF Districts
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual {on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

District 3 District 4
Variance with E Variance with
final budget - final budge? -
Original Final Excess Criginal E s Excess
Budget Budget Actual {Deficiency} Budget Buidge Actual {Deficiency)
REVENUE E
Taxes $ 1,300,000 § 1300000 %1253575 § {46,425) $1,079,000 "$:43096,000 51,162,066 3 £6,066
Intergovernmental revenue 464,300 464,300 458,196 (6,104) 16,200 16,200 15,860 {240)
Investment eamings (joss) 3,000 3,000 23,049 20,048 19,200 19,200 18,283 {917)
Total revenue 1,767,300 1,767,300 1,734,820 {32,480) \ 1,131,400 1,196,308 64,909
EXPENDITURES
General government 12,720 51,920 50,637 1,283 26,075 25,284 794
Public works - S - 80,000 58,51 21,499
Conservation and developmeant - - 980,000 - 980,000
Capltal outtay - 1,630,751 - - - -
Debt Service i :
Frincipat 1,675,000 - - - - - :
Interest 74,575 423 - - - -
Total expenditures 1,762,295 1,631,857 8,075 1,086,075 83,785 1,002,280
Excess {deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures 5,005 1,598 377 1,405,325 45,325 1,112,524 1,067,199
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers in #13,516 - (113,516) - -

Net changes in fund balances

.5 {1,573753) (87,892) $ 1485861  $1,105325 § 45325 1,412,524 § 1,067,199

Adjustments tc generally acce
accounting principles basi
2016 encumbrances (1,341,608}

287z © 51,193

2017 encumbrances
Fund balances - begirning 1,341,405 1,242 282
Fund bafances (deficit) - ending ! $_.(85.123) $ 2,405,939

{Continued}
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
TIF Districts
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Charges in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actua! (on a Budgetary Basls)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Schedule 11
Concluded)

District &
Variance with
final budget -
Originai Final Excess
Budget Budget Actual {Deficiency)
REVENUE
Taxes & - % -3 - % -
Total reverue - - - -
EXPENDITURES
General government 35,370 42 B70 7,650 35720
FPublic works 4,000 26,648 20,000 6,548
Conservation and developmenl 21,900 51,800 48,121 3,779
Debt Service
interest 127,125 127,125 127,125
Debt issuance costs 79,575 78,575 79,575
Total expenditures 267,870 328,118 g
Excess (deficiency) of reverue
over expenditures {267,970} {328,118)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

Transfers out
General obligation cebt issued
Premium con debt issued

(10,949,250
11,675,000
144,688

hel changes in fund balances 3

Adjustments to generally accepted
accounting principies basis

2017 encumbrances 28,742

Fund balances {deficit} - beginning 51,8486)
Fund balances {deficit) - ending § {98,875)
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Schedule 12
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Source
As of December 31, 2017

Governmental funds capital assets:

tand $ 25,072,851
Buildings and improvements 26,860,342
Machinery and equipment 18,562,309
infrastructure improvements 104,393,847
Construction in process 442,804

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 175,332,253

Investment in governmental capital assets by source:

General Fund 614,851
Special Revenue Funds 3,216,007
Capital Projects Funds 04,962,082
Donations 76,537,513

$ 175,332,253

Total governmental funds capital assets
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Schedule 12.4 |
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN |
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Function and Activity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Buildings Machinery
and and Infrastructure Construction
Function and Activity Land Improvements  Equipment  Improvements In process Total
General Government:
Mayar $ - % - 8 2202 % - % - 8 2,202
Aldermen - - 9,584 - - 9,684
Municipal court - - 35,210 - - 35,210
City clerk - - 21,416 - - 21,416
Eiections - - 24,610 - - 24810
information services - - 733,899 - - 733,889
Administration - - 261,310 - - 261,310
Human resources - - 9,617 - - 9,617
Finance - - 189,179 189,179
Assessor - - 46,080 46,080
Atorney - - 9086 906
Municipal buildings 597 437 3,472,282 498 539 4,669,258
Total General Government 597 437 3,472,282 1,833,552 5,803,271
Public Safety:
Police 1,201,829 8,401,443 2,447 585 - - 12,050,857
Fire 63,248 4,351,456 3,734,300 - - 8,149,004
Building inspection - - 322,657 - - 322,657
Total Public Safety 1,285,077 12,752,899 6,504,542 - - 20,522 518
Public Works:
Engineering - - - 334,980
Highway 357,407 - - 9,442,491
Street Lighting - - - 1,097
Infrastruciure 18,857,376 104,393,847 - 123,251,223
Construction in process - 442,804 442,804
Total Public Works 19,214,783 : 6,575,959 104,393,847 442 804 133,472,595
Heaith & Human Services:
Heaith - 131,833 - - 131,833
Culture and Recreation:
Library 4,965,004 2,697,053 - - 7,666,057
Parks 2,820,655 771,185 - - 7,587,784
Total Culture and Recreatio 7,789,859 3,468,238 - - 15,253,851
Conservation and Developmen
Planning - - 48,185 - - 48,185
Total Conservation” - - 48,185 - - 48,185

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 250720951 § 26860342 § 18,562,308 § 104,393,847 § 442804 $ 1753322583
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Function and Activity
General Government;
Mayor
Aldermen
Municipal court
City clerk
Elections
Information services
Administration
Human rescurces
Finance
Assessor
Attorney
Municipal buildings
Total Genera! Government

Public Safety:
Police
Fire
Building inspection
Total Public Safety

Public Works:
Engineering
Highway
Street lighting
Infrastructure
Construction in process
Total Public Works

Health & Human Services:
Health

Culture and Recreation:
Library
Parks

Total Culture ang-Recreation

Conservation and
Planning
Total Conservation and

Total governmental funds capital assets $

Dévelbpment

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Governmental Funds Capital Assets

Schedule 12.2

1213116 Additions Deletions Transfers 12131117
$ 2202 % - % - - 2,202
8,584 - - - 4,584
35,210 - - - 35,210
21,416 - - - 21,418
24,610 - - - 24,610
660,460 73,439 - - 733,899
261,310 - - - 261,310
8,617 - - 8,617
167,549 21,630 - 189,179
46,080 - - 46,080
806 - - 808
4 569 258 - 4,569,258
5,808,202 95,089 5,803,271
12,036,610 182,380 (4,977 12,060,857
212,806 4,977 8,142,004
49 552 - 322,657
444 738, - 20,522,518
- - 334,980
58,250 - 9,442,481
- - . 1,097
5. 8,452,369 28,471 - 123,251,223
1,864,332 2,541,453 - 442,804
8,823,701 2,628,174 - 133,472,595
- - - 131,833
7,671,638 107,155 112,736 - 7,666,057
7,577,018 10,776 - - 7,587,784
15,248 656 117,931 112,736 - 15,253,851
48,185 - - - 48,185
48,185 - - - 48,185
168,767,362 % 9581436 § 3,006548 - 175,332,253
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